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independent Auditors’ Report

To the sharcholders of
Sofiyska Voda ATY

Report on the Financial Siatements

We have audited the accompanying corsolidated financial statements of Sofiyska Voda AD
(*the Company™), which comprise the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2008, and
the consolidated income statement, consolidated statement of changes in equity and
consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
decounting policies and other explanatory notes,

Management's Responsibility for ihe Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
slatements in accordance with Lhe International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as
adopred by the Furopean Union (EU). This responsibility includes: designing, implementing
and maintaining intermal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of [inancial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to frand or error:; selecting and
applying appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that are reasonable
in the circnmstances

Auditors’ Responsibifity

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our andit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with the professional requirements of International Standards
on Auditing. Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and

perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the consolidated financial statements
are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves perfonming procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selecled depend on the auditor's
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of materia]l misstalement of the financial
statements, whether due to frand or error.  In making those risk assessments, the anditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
ciitity's indemial condtol. A audit also weludes evaluaiing ihe appropriaiensss of accounting
palicies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufticient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.



Opinion
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial
position of the “Soflyska Voda” AD as of 31 December 2008, and of its consolidated financial

performance and consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with the
Intermational Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as adopted by the European Union (EU).

Without qualifying our opinion we draw attention to the following:

o JFRIC Imterpretation 12 -- Service Concession Arrangements has not vet been endorsed by
the Buropean Union, amd lor (his rcason is not applied in these financial statemerts.
Endorsement is expected in 2000 and (his moy have significant effect on the financial
statetnents of the Company. The indicative cffects on the financial statements of the Compaty
are discussed more fully in Appendix | to the Consolidated financial statements.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Annual repori of the activities of the Company in accordance with the requirements of articie 33
af the Accountancy Act

As reguired under the Accountancy Act, we report that the historical financial information
prepared by Management and disclosed in the annual report of the activitics of the Company, as
required under article 33 of the Accountancy Aet, is comsistent, in ull material aspects, with the
financial information disclosed in the andited consolidated financial statements of the Company
as of and for the year ended 31 December 2008, Management is responsible for the preparation
of the annual report of the activities of the Company which was approved by the Board of
directors 24 March 2009,
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Soliyska Voda AD
Consolidated financial statemenis as at 31 December 2008

Consolidated income statement

For the vear ended 31 December 2008

I thousands of BGN Nuote 2008 2007
Eevenue ] 94 084 BO.209
Crther income f 1,322 2. 184
85,406 82,393
Expenses lor matenals il (54001 8,235
Expenses for hired scrvices 8 {23877 (21.932)
Depreciation and amortization 13.14 (12,697 (12,403}
Sylarics, remuneration and other personnezl benefits 49 {10,850 {9,561
Spcial security contributions and other social expenses 9 (3817 (3,557
Other operating expenses 1y (10,382} {8.472)
Profit from operating activities 24,277 204,235
Finance imcoms 513 478
Finance expense (8219 (13,333}
Met Financing expanse 11 (7.406) (17,853}
Profit before tax 16,871 2,380
Income tax expense 12 (307} (1,387
Net profit tor the year I6,364 993

I

The consolidated income stalement 1s to be read in conjuncion wiil i
consolidated financial siatements set outl on pages 6 Lo 46.

The consolidated financial statement were approved on 24 March 2009 by the Board of Directors.
Teodora Koseva Gregory Endemana @L‘uﬂ#ﬁ
Financial Direct _ Executive DHrectur

(ilbert MeCaul
Partiter

Antoaneta Boicheva
Registered Auditor
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~PerncTpipan agimop

EPMG Bulgaria
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Salivska Yoda AD

Consolidated finrncial sigtements az at 31 December 2004
Consolidated statement of changes in equity
For the year ended 31 December 2008

in thousands of BOGN

Share General Hedge Hetained Total
capital reserves reserves earnings

Balance at 1 January 2007 .58 170 S 4,377 13,431
Change in reserves = 130 . (1300 -
Recognized profit for the vear - - - wa3 993
Balance at 31 December 2007 b 30H) e 5,240 14,424
Balance at | January 20058 8,884 300 - 5.240 [4.424
Change in reserves - o9 : (94
Fair value evaluation of hedging = - {2.323) - [2,323)
nslruments
Deferred tax asset of fzir value - - 232 - 232
estimate ol hedging instruments
Recopnized profit for the year - - - 16,364 15,364
Balanee at 31 December 2008 ) a,834 3049 (2,081 21,505 28,697

The consolidated statement of changes in equity is to be read in conjunction with the notes 1o and forming part of the
consolidated financial statements set out on pages 6 to 46.
The consolidated Financial statements were approved on 24 March 2009 by the Board of Direcions,

Teodora Koseva Gregory Endernano L0
Financial Diveclor _. Executive Direclor

Gilhert McCanl
Partmer

Antoansta Boicheva
Registered Audizor

KPMG Bulg
37 Fridtjof
1142 Solia
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Sotiyska Voda AD
Consolidared financial statements ws o It December 2008

Consolidated balance sheet

For the year ended 31 December 2008

B thousandys of BGN MNopte 2008 2007
Non-enrrent assets

Property, plant and couipment 13 123,402 111,558
Intangible assets 14 £.362 12,747
Goodwill 14 7393 7,393
Financial assets - &l
Deferred {axes assets 20 4,342 -
Total non-current assets 148.499 131,758
Inventories 15 1,910 [,327
Trade and other receivables 16 30,629 29572
Cash and cash equivalents 17 11,082 9.113
Total current assets 43821 4012
Total Assets 192,120 171,770
Equity

Share capital 18 2.ER4 BRE4
Reserves (1,692} EiLN
Retained carnings 21,505 5,240
Total capital and reserves 28,697 i4.424

| SN [y ) R
IR LTI TLLMTIRENLIS ATy RPL Y,

Interest bearing loans and borrowings 1% 116,421 1 103,519
Liabilties under finance leases 19 1030 589
Delerred taxes liabilities 20 1,840 :
Liabilities for retirement compensatiun 25 . 425 404
Total non-current liabilities 119,716 111,902




Soflyska Voda AL
Consolidared financicl statements as at 31 December 2008

Consolidated balance sheel

For the year ended 31 December 2008

In thowsands of BGN Mote 2008 2007
Current liahibities

Interest bearing loans and borrowings 1% 4,741 13.508
Liabalities under finance leases 19 B2 320
Tax liabilities 23 1,041 1,519
Payahles to related parties 2% 9,652 13,237
Trade aml other pavables 4 22,382 16,091
Dearivatives 24 23323 -
Provisions 22 2,540 231
Liabilities for retirement compensation 25 326 158
Tatal current liabilities 43 707 45 444
Total liabilities 163,423 137,340
Tuotal equity and labilities 192,120 171,770

The consalidated balance sheet is to be read in conjunction with the notes to and forming part of the consclidated
financial staternents set out o1 pages 6 1o 4.

The consolidated financial statements were approved on 24 March 2009 by the Board of Directurs.

_._.—-'-"'-_'__
Teodora Koseva Gregory Endemano
Fincacial Derecior - Executive Thrector

Gitbert MeCaul
Parner

V.

Antoaneta Bolcheva
Regisiered Auditor

KPMOG Bulgana
37 Fridtjof Manse!
1142 Sotia



Sofiyska Voda AD
Consolidated financial statements as ot 31 December 2008

Consolidated statement of cash flows
For the vear ended 31 December 2008

i thouscndds of BOGN Nole 218 20H7

Operating activities
Net profit before tax 16,871 2,380
Adjustirments for

Tlepreciation and amortizaiicn M 12,597 12,403
Expenses on interest bearing loans and hormowimgs 1] 7,242 13,716
Other interest expenses 11 210 1,991
Impairment of receivables 10 6,055 5,395
Provisions 2.5M) 231
{GainsY loss [rom derivatives (18} (123
Other non cash items {1,207 (5
{(Tncreaseddecrease in trade and other receivables f11.582) {5,28%)
{Increase’/decrease i invenories (B84 3
Increasef{decrease) in frade and other payables 9228 3,221
{Corporate income tax paid i1,882) {F.571)
Net cash flow from operating ackivities _ 39,29 25 440
Investment activities
Fayments [or acquisition of property, plant and equipment (74.3GR) (17.955)
Praceeds from sale of property, planl and equipment 123 3
Net cash flow from investing activities 24.275) {17,983}
Financing aclivities
Repayment of borrewings (4217} (4057}
Interest paid on bomowimgs (7872} (4,132)
Payment of (inance lease liabilities ) (937 (483)
Net cash flaw from financing activities __(13,026) (8,604}
Net increasc/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 1,969 {1239
Cash and cash equivaients at the beginning of the year 17 G113 10352
Cash aml cash eguivalents at the end of the year 17 11,082 9,113

The cansalidated halance sheet is to be read in conjunction with the notes to and forming part of the consolidaled
financial slatements set out on pages 6 to 46.

The comsolidated financial statements were appraoved on 24 March, 2009 by the Board of Direclors.

Teodora Koseva Ciregory Endernana
Finuncial Director : Executive Director

Gilbert MeCaul / | Xx\ Antoaneta Boichev ﬁ 0332

N 1 Eoiivesa
A Reygistered Auditor \wﬂaﬂuﬂ)

1142 Sofia



Sofiyska Voda AD
Consolidated financial statements as ar 31 December 2008

Motes to the consolidated financial statements
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Sofivska Voda AD
Consolidared financial starements ax at 31 December 2008

Motes to the consolidated financial statements

3

{a}

(b)

(¢)

Reporting entity

Sofiyska Voda AD (the Company) is a company registered in Sofia Cily Cowt on 2% December 1999 under
company case Ne 16172/199% ) NeS4111, p.557, registration. 1, page 20, The address of the registered office of
the Company is Bulgaria, Sofia , bl Miadost 4, str. Business Park Sofia 1, building 2A. The Company 1s 77.10%
owned by United Utilities (Sofia) BV and 22.90% owned by Vodosnabdiavane I Kanalizacia EAD,

The Company’s business is the provision ol water and wastewater services in the Municipality of Sofia, including
managing and maintenance of the public assets which represent part of the wates main and wastewaler-reatmen
system in Sofia and also construction, financing and managing of new assets.

Sofivska Voda AD signed on 23 December 1999 a Concession Contract throngh which the Municipality of Sofi
granted 1o the Concessionaire {(Sofiyska Voda AD} a specific rieht for use of the public assels and exclusive
permission to provide the Services within the Cancession Arca for a period of 25 years. The Services include the
provisien of water, sewerags and waslewater treaiment services.

The: Group consists of Sofiyska Voda AD and Water Industry Support and Educalion EOOD {WISE), which i3
100% subsidiary of Sofiyska Voda AD. Water Industry Support and Education FOOD is registered in Sofia Cily
Court under company case Ne 9889/2000 / Ne37546, p.6632, page 2%. The address of the registered office of the
subsidiary is Bulgaria, Sofia, bl. Mladost 4, str. Business Park Sofia 1. building 24, 5 f1. The business of Water
Industry Support and Education EOOD involves measurement and mainlenance. plarming, wade and cvery other
activity, not forbidden by law, with the exception of construction work and building entrepreneurship, as well as
redi esidie inadng.

Basis of preparation
Statement of compliance

The financial stalerments for 2008 have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporling
Standards (IFES) as endorsed by the Buropean Commission.

1AS § Accounting policies, changes in accounting estimates and errors requires the Company to disclose the fact
that it has not applied standards and interpretations to published Tnternational Finuncial Reporting Standards that
are not yet effective. as well as nformation about the possible eftect [rom application of the respective standards
and interpretations in the period of the first time upplication.

The Company has disclosed the effects from application of published Imternational Financial Reporting
Standards that arc not effective as ar the halance sheet date or are net yet approved by the European Comimission,
but may have an effect on the Company’s activities (see Significant accourting policy 3 (1) and Appendix 1).

T consolidatcd financial statements for the vear ended 31 December M08 were approved by the Board of

o+ =
Threctors on 24 harch 20045,
Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for hedging financial instruments,
which are stated at fair value (sec Significanl acceunting policy 3 (1.

¥unctional and presentation currency

The financial statements have been prepared in Bulgarian leva (BGN), which iz the Company’s funciional
currency. All financial information presented in BGN has been rounded to the nearest thousand.

=]



Sofivaka ¥Voda AD
Cansolidated financial statements as at 31 December 2008

Motes to the consolidated financial statements

(d)

(al

Rasis of preparation (continued)
Use of estimates and judgments

The preparation of the financial statements in ennformity with TFRS requires managament 1o make judgments,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting pelicies and the reported amounts of assets
and liabilitizs, income and expensas. Actual results may differ rom these estimabes.

Eshmates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions 10 ascounting esimates are
recognized in the pariod in which the estimate is revized and in any future periods affectad

In particular, information about significant areas of estimate uncertainty and critical judgments in applying
accounting policics that have the most significant effect on the amount recognized in the lindncial statements are
described in the following notes:

s Note 13 - Property, plant and eguipment;
s Mote 24 — Financial instruments;
s MNowe 14 - Intangible assels;

# Mote 16 - Trade and other recelvables.
Signilicant accounting polices

The accounting policies set cul below have been applied consistently to all periods presented in these financial
stafernents.

Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are transluted W (he respeclive functional currency of the company at
exchange rates stated by the central bank at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in forzign currencies at the reporting date are retranslated tw the funetional currency at the exchange
rate statad by the central bank at that date. The [oreign currency gain or loss on monetary items is the difference
between amortized cost in the [unctional currency at the beginning of the period, adjusted for effective interast
and payments during the period, and the amortized cost in fereign currency translated at the exchange rate at the
end of the period. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that are measured at fair
value are remanslated to e [uocional corrency at the exchanpe rate al the date that the fair value was
determined,

Foreign currency differences arising on retranslation are recognized in profin or loss, except {or differences
arising on the retranslation of available-Tor-sale equity mstruments, a financial lability designated as a hedge of
the et investment in a foreign operation, or qualifving cash flow hedges, which are reccgnized directly n equity.

From 1997 m the date of the financial stztements approval, the exchange rate of the Bulgarian lev (BGN) has
been fixed to the Euro {(EUR). The exchange rate is BGMN 195583 /EUR 1.0



Sofiyska Voda AD
Consolidated financial statements as ar 31 December 2008

Notes to the consolidated financial statements

(b}
{i)

Significant accounting polices (continued)
Financial Instruments
Non-derivative financial instruments

Non-derivative financial instraments comprise investments in equity and debt securities, trade and other
receivables, cash and cash equivalents, loans and borrowings, and trade and other payables,

Non-dervative financial instruments are recognized initially at fair value plus, for instruments not at fair value
through profit or loss, any directty attributable transaction costs. Subsequent o initial recognition non-derivative
financial instruments are measured as described below,

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances, current accounts and call deposits. Bank overdrafts that are
repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Company’s cash management are included as a component of
cash and cash equivalents for the pucpose of the statement of cash flows,

Accounting for finance income and expense is discussed in note 3 (f).
Held-to-maturity investments

If the Company has the positive intent and ability to hold debt securities to maturity, then they are classified as
held-te-maturity. Held-to-maturity investments are measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method,
less any impairment losses.

Available- for-sale financial assets

The Company’s invesimenis in equiry securities and certain debt securitics are classified as available-for-sale
fimancial assets. Subsequent to initial recognition, they are measured at fair value and changes therein, other than
the impairment losses, and foreign exchange gains and losses and available-for-sale monetary items (see note 3(h))
are recognized directly in equity. When an investment is derecognized. the cumulative gain or loss in equity is
transferred in profit or loss.

The available-for-sale monetary items are considered current financial assets at fair value. Profit or Joss, resulting
of the fair value evaluation are recognized in the Income statement.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss in the Income stutement

An instrument is ciassified at fair value through profic or loss if it is held for trading or is designated as such upon
initial recognition. Financial instruments are designated at fair value through profit or loss if the Company manages
such investments and makes purchase and sale decisions based on their fair value in accordance with the
Company’s documented risk management or investment strategy Upon initial recognition attributable transaction
costs are recognized in profit or loss when incurred. Financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss are
measured at fair value, and changes therein are recognized in profit or loss,

Qither

Other non-derivative linancial instruments are measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method. less
any impairment losses.

G



Sofiyska Voda AT
Consolidared financial statements as at 31 December 2008

Nules to the consolidated financial statemends

(i)

{i)

(i)

{c)

Significant accounting polices {continued)
Financial Instruments (continued)

Share capital

Ordinary shares

Nirdinury charae
Lirchmury Shares

g

ra olaggified as equity  Incremental costs directly attributable w the issue of ordinary shares
and share options arc recognized as a deduction from equity, net of any tax effects.

Derivative financial insiroments

Lash flaw hedging

The Company holds derivative financial instruments to hedge interest rate risk exposures

The change in the fair value of a hedging instrument, defined as a hedging of a cash flow, is recognized dicectly in
the equity at the effective rate of the hedge. For any ineffective portion of the hedge the changes in the fair valuz
are recognized in the income staterment.

Il the hedging instrament ¢an no longer meet the hedging reporting conditions, if it i3 sold, cancelied, m
exercised, then the cumulative profit / loss that has been separately recognized in the equity until the fulfiliment
of the transaction, is tramsferred into profit / loss in the same period o which the hedged position applies.

When the lransaction is completed, the hedge reporting ceases.

If the fransachion is not expected to be completed, the cumulative profit / loss that has been directly rectiznized in
the equity, is recognized m the Tncome statement.

Property, plant snd equipment
Recognition and measurement
Dwned aod public assets

Items af property, plant and equipment and improvement of public asseis arc stated at cosl less accumulated
depreciation and impalrment lusses [see Significant accounting policy 3 if)). Trems of property, plant and
cquipment are stated at cost at the date of their acquisition. The cost includes the purchase price, including the
non-refundable taxes and all cxpenses incurred (@ bring the assel inlo use.



Sofiyska YVoda AD
Consolidated financial statements as at 31 December 2008

Motes to the consolidated financial statemnents

3+

Significant accounting polices (continued)

{¢) Property, plant and equipment { continued }

fE

"

Recognition and measurement { continued )

Owned and public assefs

Lindar the Concession Contraet the Company has 2 specific right to use public assets. which are in public cwnership
in accordance with the Municipatity ownership act. The right of ownership of the existing public assets belongs w the
Grantor (Sofia Municipality). Tor the period of the Concession, however, the Concessicnaire has the exclusive and
special right to use the exisling public assets, The right of use of new public assets is transferred to the
Concessionaire on the acquisition date or the date the assets arc in use by the Concessionaire. The Company has no
right 1o receive any consideration from the Grantor in respect W acquisition, construction, instaliation and creation of
any new public assets. The Company is making sigmficant improvements to the public assets the cost of which 15
capitalized as leasehold improvements and water-main improvements. The Company does not pay to the Grantor
consideration in respect of the specific right o use the new public assels.

e cost of self-constructed assels includes the cost of marerials, direct labour and other direct costs, including
expenses for hired services of subcontracting companies, In accordance with the Technical Services Agreement anc
the Asser Management Agreement, the Company incurs expendilure for the services of consultants, which are
capitalized in the cost of the assets only where Lhey are directly related to the asset and economic benefits are
expected to be received by the Company for the peried of utilization of the asset. Bascd on detailed time-shects and
documents describing the scope and the expected results from the services el the copsultants, these expenses are
capitalized in the cost of the sell-constructed asset,

Prafit or Ioss trom sold items of property, plant ad equipment are measured as the difference between Lhe selling

price and the book value of the items of property, plant and equipment and are recognized as “other revenug™ in the
Tncome statement.

Subsequent expendittire

The cost of replacing part of an item of property, plant and equipment that is accounted for separately including
mujor inspection: and overhaul expenditure is capitalized, Subsequent expenditure is capitalized ondy if it increases
ihe future economic benefits embodied in the item of property, plant and equipment. The carrying amount ol the
replaced part is derecognized.  All other expenditure is recognized in the income staiement as an expense when
mcurred.  When the property, plant and equipment include components with different useful Lives, they are
recorded separately.

Leased assefs

Leases in terms of which the Company assumes substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are classified as
finance leases. Upon initial recognition the leased assel 15 measured at an amount equal to the lower of its fair value
and the present value of the minimum lease payments at the beginning of the lease period, decreazed by the
accumulated depreciation and imoairment loszes (refer to Significant accountng policy 3 (f}). Subsequent to initial
recognition, the asset is accounted for in accordance with the accounting palicy applicable to that asset.

Other lcases are operating leases and assets on operating leasing are not recognized in the Company's balance
sheet.



Sotiyska Voda AlD
Consolidated financiad storemenis as af 31 December 2008

Motes to the consolidated financial statements

ch

(id)

(d}

(i)

(6}

{iii)

Significant accounting palices {continued)
Property, plant and equipment {continued)
Pepreciation

Depreciation is recognized in profit or Joss on a straight-ling basis over the estimated useful lives of items of
pmp-en}r, plant and aquipmenl. Leased assets are ilt.i]lﬁ:Clﬂltd ovar the shorter of the lease term and thew usetul
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not depreciated.

Assels are depreciated from the month following the acquisition date. The depreciation rates wsed are based on
the estimated useful lives as follows:

¢  Hunildings 23 years
*  Plant and equipment 5-25 years
»  Vehicles — automaobiles 5- 10 years
* Yehicles — trucks 12,5 vears
s Water nebwork improvements 25 years (or tne remaining period of the concession

contract)

All depreciztion methods, useful lives and residual values arc revicwed at cach reporting date.
Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired by the Company are stated al acquisition cost less accumulated amortization and
impairment kasses (reter to Sigmhicant accounting policy 3(6)).

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition represents the excess of the cost of the business combinaticn aver the
acquirer's interest in the net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities. After initial
recoenilion, the acquirer shall measure goodwill acquired in a business combination at cost less any accumulaled
impairment losses. {see Significant accounting policy 3(0).

Research and development

Expenditure on research aclivilies {internally generated intangible assets from research activities — research phase
of a preject) is recognised in the income statement as an expense as incurred.

Expenditure on development activities, whereby research findings wre upplied to & plan or design for the
preduction of new ot substantially improved products and processes, is capitalised if the product or process is
techmically fzasible and the Company has sufficient resources to complate the development. The expenditure
canitalised includes the cost of materials, dircct fabour and an appropriate proportin of vverheads.  Other
development expenditure is recognized in lhe income statement as an expense as incwred.

Software

The software purchased by the Company is siated at cost less accumnulated amortization (see below) and
impairment losses (see Sigaificant accounting policy 3(f)).



Sofivska Voda AD
Consplidated financial statements as af 31 December 2008

MNotes to the consolidated (inancial statements

(d}
(iv)

v}

(e}

(L}

i)

Significant accounting polices (continucd)
Intangible assets (continued)
Subseguent expenditure

Subsequent expendilure on capitalised intangible assets is capitalised only when they meel the recogaition critena
for intangible assets, that is when future economic benefits are probable and the expendilure can be measured
rehably. All other expenditure is expensed as incurred.

Amorfizalion.

Amortisation is charged o the income statement on a straight-line busis over the estimated useful lives of intangible
assels,

The useful lives of the intangible assets are as follows;

» capitalised development costs .07 years

e other intangibles 6.67 years

o coftware 100 years
Inventories

Invenicries are stated at the lower of their cost and net realisable value, Net realisable value is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs of completion and sclling expenses. The cost of
inventaries at their consumption is based on the weighted average principle and includes expendimure incurred in
acquiring the inventories and bringing them Lo their existing location and condition. As far the produced inventoties
and the semi-finished poods, their value includes part of the indirect manufaciuring expenses, bused on he normal
operational capacity of Company’s activity.

The net realizable value is the expected sales price under normal market conditions, reduced with the expected sales
COSIS,

Impairment
Financial Assets

A financial asset is assessed at each reporling date to determine whether there s any objective evidence that it is
impaired. A financial asset is considered to be impaired if objective evidence indicates that vne or mare events have
had a nepative effect on the estimated fupure cash Jows of that asset.

An impairment loss in respect of 2 financial assets measured at amortized cost is calculated as the difference
berween its carrving ameunt and the present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the original
effective interest rate. An impairment loss in respect of an avaiiable-for-sale [nancial asset is calculaled by
reference to its current fair value,

Individvally significant financial assets are tested for impairment on an individual basis. The rest are eslumated in
groups with simalar characteristic features.

All impairment losses are recognized in profit or loss. Any cumulative loss in respect of an available-for-sale
financial asset recognized previously in equity is transferred to profit or loss.
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(£}
{i)

{ii)

Significant accounting polices (contioved)
Impairment (continued}
Financial Assets (continued)

An impairment Joss is reversed if the reversal can be related objectively o an event ceourring after the impairment
loss was recognised. For [inancial assets measured at amortised cost and available-for-sale fimancial assets that are
debt securilies, the reversal is recognised in profit or loss. For available-tor-sale tmancial assels that are equity
securities, the reversal is recognised directly in equity.

Nan-financial asseis

The carrying amounts of the Company’s non-financial assets, other than inventories (refer 1o accounting policy 3ie)}
and deferred tax assets {refer to accounting policy 3(k)), are reviewed utl each reporting date to determine whether
there is amy indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.
For intangible assels that have indefinite lives or that are nol yet available for use, the recoverable amount is
estimated at each reporting date.

The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-weneraiing unit is the preater of it value in use and its Tair value less
costs to scll. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the visks specific to the
asset, For the purpcse of impairment testing, asseis are grouped logether into the smallest group of assets that
generates cash infiows ITom continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or groups
An impairment loss is recognized if the carrying amount of an asset ot its cash-generating unit exceeds its estimated
recoverable amount, Impairment losses are recognized in profit or loss. Impairment losses recognized in respect of
cush-generating units are allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any gocdwill allocated to the units and then
to reduce the carrying amount of the other assets in the unit (group of units )

An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed. Tn respect of other assets, impairment losses recognized in
prior periods are assessedd at each reporting daie for any indications that the loss hay decreased or no longer exists.
An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount,
An impairment loss is reversed only to the exlent that the asset's carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortization, if no impairment loss had been
recognized.

14
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iz
fi)

(i)

fiig)

Significant accounting polices {continuecd)
Defined benefit plans

Long-term bencfits

A defined benefit plan is a post-empluyment benelil plan other than a defined contribution plan. The Company’s
nel obligaiion in respect of defined benefit pension plans is calculated separately for each plan by estimating the
arnunt of futire hanafit that emplovess have parnad in retarn for theit service in e cnrrent andd i nr pf'.rindﬁ;
that benefit is discountzd to determine its present value. Any unrscognized pasl service costs and the fair value of
any plan assets are deducted. The discount rate is the yield at the reporting date on AA credit-rated bonds that
have mammrity dates approximating the terms of the Company's obligations and that are denominatzd In lhe same
currency in which the benefits are expected Lo be puid. The calculation is performed annually by a gqualified
actuary using the projecied umil credit method., When the caleulation resulis in a benefit to the Company. the
recognized asset is limited to the net total of any wnrecognized past service cosis and the present value of any
future refunds from the plan or reductions in future contributions o the plan.

When the benefils of a plan are inproved, the portion of the increased benefit relating to past service by
employe=es is recognized in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the average perivd unlil the benefits
become vested. To the exten: that the benefits vest immediately, the expense is recognized immediately in profit
or Toss.

The Cumpany recognizes a portion of the actaarial profits and losses which originate from defined income
plans as income or expenses, if until the date concerned the cumulative unrecognized actuariai profits and
losses at the end of the previous repoited period exceed the current amount of for defined income obligation by

[ R TN
DL ey

Other long-term benefits

The net obligation of the Company for long-term employee income, other Uian retirement plans, comprises
amounts for Tuture income due and payable to employees for present and past service; this income is discounted
in order 1o determine its present value; the fair value of associated assets is reduced. The discounl rate s an
income as at the date of the balance sheet related to securities which have been awarded credit rating AA and
which have maturity approximately corresponding Lo the term of contractual obligation of the Company. The
caleularion is perlormed by the method of credit forecast able units. The actuarial profits or losses are reportad
in the income statement in which thesc criginate,

Shori-term benefits

Short-term empleyes benefit ohligations are measwed on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as the relaled
service is provided. The Company recognizes as a liability the undiscounted amount of the expenses tor annual
paid leave that are expected w be paid to employess for the services provided during prior reporting periods,

A Tiability is recognized for the umount expected to be paid under short-term cash bonus or profit-sharing plans
if the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as = resull of past service
provided by the employee and the abligation can be cstimated reliably.



Soliyvska Voda AD
Consolidared financial statements as ar 31 December 2008

Notes to the consolidated financial statements

(h)

(i)

5]

Significant accounting polices (continued}

Provisions

A provision is recognized il, as 2 result of 2 past event, the Company has a present legal ar constrictive
ablipation that can be estimated reliably, and il is probable that an cutflow of economic benzfits will be required
to settle the obligation. Provisions are derermined by discounting the expected future cash flows at u pre-iax rate
that reflerts corrent market assesaments of the time valoe of money and the risks specific to the liahility,

Legal liabilities provision

Legal liabilitizs provisions are included in the Company’s financial statements due o existing legal liabilities cn
court actions concerning past cvents. Evaluation of the provision is camried out by the lepal advisors of the
Company based om all the facls and cicumstances related to the expectad cash outflows resulting from a
hypaothetical court decision in other party’s favor,

Revenupe

Croods yold and services rendered

Revenus from the sale of goods is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, net of
returns, trade discounts and volume rebates, Revenue is recognized when the sipaificant risks and rewards of
ownership have been ransferred o the buyer, recovery ol the consideration is probable, the associated costs and
pussible retarn of gonds can be estimated reliably, there is no contining management involvement with the
enads, and the amount of revenue can be measured reliably. Transfers of risks and rewards vary depending on
the individual wrms of the comtract of sale, Hovenuo fom sorvicos rendersd is rocognized o profit or loss dn
proportion to the slape of completion of the transaction at the reporting date. The stage of completion is assessed
by reference to surveys of work performed.

Finance income and expenses

Finance income comprises interest income on funds invested (including available-for-sale financial assefs),
dividend income, gains on the disposal of available-for-sale financial assets, changes in the fair valuz of financial
nssets at Tair valoe through profit or loss, and gains on hedging instruments that are recognized in profil or loss.
Tnterest income is recognized as it acerues in profit or loss. using the effective interest method. Dividend income
iy recogmized in profit or loss on Lhe date that the Group’s right to receive payment is established, which in the
case ol quoted securities is the ex-dividend date.
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Uy

{k}

Significant accounting polices {continued)
Finance income and expenses {continued)

Finance expenses comprise Interest expense on borrowings, unwinding of the discount on previsions, dividends
on preference shares classified as Tahilities, changes in the fair value of financial assels al fair value through
profit or loss, Tmpairment losses recognized on financial assels, and losses on hedging instruments thal are
recompmized in profit or Ines ATl horrowing costs are recognized in profit or loss using the effeclive wlerest
method.

Foreign currency gains and losses are reported on & net basis.

Tneome tax

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. [ncome tax expense is tecognized m protit or loss
except 1o the extent thal il relates to items recognized directly in equity. in which case it iy recogmized in equity,

Current tax is the expected tax payabie on the taxable income for the year, using lax rates enacted ot
substantively enacied at the reporting date. and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax is recognized using the balance sheet methed, providing for temporary ditferences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liahilities for financial reporting purposes and he amounts used for taxation
purposes, Deferred tax is not recognized for the following temporacy differences: the initial recogniion of assets
ar Tiabilities in a transaction that is nol a business comhination and rthat affects neither accounling noy taxable
profit, and differences relating Lo investmants in subsidiaries and jointly controlled entities to the extent that it s
probable (hat they will not reverse in the foresceaole future. In addilion, deferred tax is not recognized lor
taxable temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of goodwill,

Deferred tax is measured al the tax rates that are expected to be applied to the temporary differences when they
reverse, basad on the laws that have been enacted or substaniively enacted by the reporting date. Deferred tax
auseis and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax liabilities and assets, and
they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same taxable entity, or on different tax
entities, but they intend to settle current tax liabilities and assets on 4 net basis or their 128 asses and liabilities
will be realized simultaneously.

A deferred 1ax asset is recognised to the extent that it is probable that future tuxable profits will be available
against which the wemporary difference ¢an be utilised. Deferred lax assets are reviewsed ai each reporting date
and are raduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realised.

L7
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3.

Significant accounting polices (conlinned)

() New International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) and interpretations {IFRIC), endorsed by the

Eurcpean commission but not yet effective as at the balance sheet date

A number of new standards, amendments o standards and interpretations are not yet effective for the year ended
31 December 2008, and have not been adopted in preparing these financial statements:

Amendment to TFRS 2 Share-based Payment — vesting and femmnation conditions (eifecive | January
20097, The amendments to the Standard clanfy the definition of vesting conditions and introduce the concept
of non-vesting conditions. Non-vesting conditions are to be reflected in grant-date fair value and failure to
meet non-vesting conditions will generally result in treatment as 2 cancellation, The Amendment o IFRS 2
will become mandatory for the Company’s 2009 financial staternents, with retrospective application required.
Management considers (hat the amendments will not have any impact on the Company as the Company does
nel have any share-based compensation plans.

IFRS & Operating Segmems {cffective 1 January 2009). The Standard introduces the “management
approach” 1o scgment reporting and requires segment disclosure based on the components of the entity that
managemenl monitors in making decisions about operating matters. Operating segments are components af
an entity about which separate financial information is avatlable that is evaluated regularly by the Group’s
Chief Operating Decision Maker in deciding how to allocate resources and in assessing performance. The
Standard will have no effect on the profit or loss or equiry and the management expects the new Standard not
ity alter significantly the presentation and disclosure of its aperating segments in the financial statements.

Revised TAS | Presenmation of Finanrial Statemerts (2ffective from 1 January 2009). The revised Standard
requires information in financial statements to be agerepated on the basis of shared characteristics and
introcduces a statement of comprehensive income.

Tiems of income and cxpense and components of other comprehensive income may be presenled either in a
single statement of comprebensive income (effectively combining the income stalement and all non-owner
changes in equity in a single statement), or in two separale slatements (4 separate inCome statement followed
by a statement of comprebensive income).

The Company is currently evaluating whether to present a single statement ol comprehensive incore, or two
separate slalements,

Revised TAS 23 Borrowing Costs removes the oplion to expense borrowing costs and requires that an entity
capitalize borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or productiva of a qualifying
asset as part of the cost of that asset, The revised IAS 23 will become mandatory for the Company's 2009
financial statements and it is not expected 1o give rise fo a change in the Company’s financial position.

TFRIC 13 Customer Loyalty Programs addresses the accounting by entities that operate. or olherwise
participate in, custemer loyalty programs for their customers. Tt relates 1o customer loyalty programs under
which the customar can Tedeem crediis i awaids such as free or discountod goods o services. Such entities
are required to allocate some of the proceeds of the initial sale 10 the award credils and recognize these
proceeds as revenue only when they have fulfilled their obligations. LFRIC 13, which becomes mandatary for
the Company’s 2009 financial stalcments, is not expecled 10 have significant impact on the financial
slalements,
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Significnnt accounting polices (continued)

New International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) and interpretations {IFRIC), endorsed by the
Furopean commission but not yet effective as at the balance sheet date (continued}

Management believes thal it is appropriate to disclose that the following revised standards, new interpretations
and amendmants to current standards, which are included under the accounting IFRS framewark as approved
bv the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB). hut are not yet endorsed for adoption by the
Luropean Commission, and therefore are not taken into account in preparing these financial statemenrs,

New standards and ioterpretations that are published, but not yet effective or approved by the European
Commission

» 535 Improvements te 24 IFRSs and TASs (2008)
o Revised IFRS 3 Business Combinarions (2008)
s Revised TFRS | Firgi-iime adoption of (FRS

e Amendments to IFRS 1 and TAS 27 related to Cosi of an Investment in a Subsidiary, Jointly-Controlied
Eniity vr Associate

s Amendments o 1AS 32 and IAS 1 related to Puttable finaneial instruments and obligotions arising on
Hquidation

o Amendments to TAS 39 related to Eligible hedged items; effective date and rransiiion

&

= [FRIC 12 Service Concession Arvangemenis
o TFRIC 13 Agreomems for ite Corsireciion of Real Liiie

s IFRIC 16 Hedges of a Net Invesiment in @ Foreign Operation
s [FRIC 17 Disrriburiony of Non-cash Assets to (heners.

As at the date of preparation of these financisl slatements, Management considers that the future application of
these revised standards, new interpretations and amendments to current siandards, once they are endorsed by
the European Corumnission, will not have a significant impact on the Company’s financial statements, except for
IFCRIC 12 = Service Concession Agreemenis, Applying TFRIC 12 will lead to considerable changes in the
financial statements. The Company has analyzed the expected consequences of applying TFRIC 12 - Service
Concession Agreements, which can be seen in Appendix 1 of the financial statements.

.
LD
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{tf

Financial risk management

The Company has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial insiruments:
s gredit sk

*  liquidity risk;

»  market risk.

This note presents information aboui e Cumpany's SKpGsIRC o oach of the shove ricks, th

objectives, policies and processes for measuring and managing risk, and the Company's management ol capital.
Further quantitative disclosures are included throughout these consolidated financial staternents.

the Company's

The Board of Directors has the overall resporsibility for the establishment and supervision of the Company’s sk
management.

The internal control teams include employees of the company who perform regular and ad-hoc reviews and

procedures connected o the management of the firancial risks and the results thereof are reported 10 the Board of
Directors.

Compuny’s risk management policies are established to identify and analyze the risks faced by the Company, to
set appropriate risk limiws and controls, and to monitor risks and adherence to limits, Risk management policies
and systems are reviewed regulasly o reflect chanpes in market conditions and the Company’s activilies. The
Company, through its traming and management standards and procedures, aims to develop a disciplined and
constrnctive contrel environment in which all emplovees understand their rodes and obligations,

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financizl loss to the Company if a customer or counterparly 1o a financial instrumens fails
to meet its contractual abligations, and arises principally from the Company’s receivables from customers.

Trade receivables

The eredit tisk exposure of the Company is resulting from imdividual characteristics of individual clients. This
expusure also depends on the risk of not payment relevant to the business sector. The Company is a monopolist
in rendering its services on the territory of Sofia Municipaiity. As at 31 December 2008 the active chents of the
company are 539,705 (2007 - 319.476). Rased on the analyses of the Company, the services rendered have low
price elasticity. The prices are regulated by the State Encrgy and Water Regulation Commission. The Company
requires a guarantee from its customers in relation ro the services rendered.

20
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4. Finanecial risk management (continued)
Liguidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due. The
Company's approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient
liguidity to mest its liabiliies when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring
unacceptable losses.

The Company performs financial planning, which will mest the payment of current expenscs and liabilities Tor a
period of 30 days, including its financial liabilities. This planning excludes the potenual effect of unplanned
cirenmstances, which cannot be planned as normal circumstances,

As the Company's business activities are related to regular deliveries and payments from clients, the liguidity risk

control 1s mainly comprised of the following components:

s careful planning of all cash outflows based on monthly forecasts,

s payment conditions with clients. which are execuied within a month — special pavment schedules are
negotiated and there are penaltics in case of delay;

Market risk

Markel risk is the risk that changes in markel prices. such as foreign exchange rates, inferest rates and equity
prices will affect the Company’s income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The objective of
market risk managemeni is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameiers, winle
optimizing the retorn,

The Company undertakes periodical analysis on e MAcroecONOMmIs environment in the country and in depth
analysis on specific macro-indicators, which are presented 1o the Board of Directors. The Board of Directors has
the responsibility for evaluation of future risks that the Company faces, including nfermarion of the intersst
rates. If the market conditions worsen hedging instruments will be used.

The Company manages its inlerest risk. In 2008 it signed & swup contract through which it hedges s risk
exposition to changes in the six-month Euribor.

Capital managemeni

The management’s policy 18 to maintain a strong capital base so as o mainiain owners” and market confidence
and to sustain future development of the business.

The purpose of the Board of Directors is to mainlain a balance between the higher return which may resull from
higher indebtedness levels and the benefits and security of a strong capitai position. The return on equity in 2008
is 57.025% (2007 6.88%).

There were no changes in the Company’s approach v Capilal imanagsment during the year, The Compuany was
nat the subject of equity requirements enforced by external authorities.

According to the second additional smendment to the Concession contract, signed on 19 March 2008, the return
on capital must be at least 17 %
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KEevenoe
In thousands of BGN 2008 2007
Income frotm water supply 63,327 34000
Income from sewerage 2056 8208
Income from waste waer treatment 15,210 13,708
Interest income on overdus recaivables ENE 2780
LCoHne OT Service sales 2,063 1,770
Invaoiced income related 1o [SPA {516} [347)
0841 B 209

Pursuant to an Agreement dated 22/06/2007 betwsen Sofiyska Voda AD and Sofia Municipality, and in connection
with pranted funds through Financial Memorandum ISPA 2000 BG 16 T' PE 001, signed between Buropean
Commission and Republic of Bulgaria, the Company is obliged w include 1 the price of the offered service water
supply, sewerage and purification of refuse waters all the necessary funds for repayment of the lcan that will be
received from the European Investment Bank project, amounting to EUR 3,775 thousand (15 % ol project’s
amuntl.

The beneficiary of the loan from the Europsan Invesiment Bauk is the Sofia Municipality, The Company is obliged
to collect the amounts mentioned above for the repayment of the loan,

The State Encrgy and Water Regulatory Commission (SEWRC) has approved these mecessary amounts for
repayment of the lnan to be included in the price of provided water - supply and sewerage service,

In 2008 all the revenues, which are meant to be transferred for repayment of this EIB joan amount w BGN 51 i
thousand (2007: BGN 347 thousand).

The amnunts collected by the Company from its customers will be transferred to the Minstry of Environment and
Waters in a special bank account opened for the loan. As at the date of the prepavation of these consclidated
fnancial stalements, the loan from the FBuropean Investment Bank has not been received and the special bank
account has not yet been opened.

Other pperating income

The iotal value of other income for 2008 is BGN 1,322 thousand (2007: BGN 2.184). Lhe major irems are
revenues from imposed sanclions for industriai discharges with above the standard concentration of fized
pollutants cqual to BGN 746 thousand (2007: BGN 1.129 thousand), gains from sold inventories to subcontractors
for repair works — BGN 167 thousand, (2007: BGN 185 thousand).

Expenses for materials

in thowsandy of BON 2008 2007
Electricity 2737 2,200
Fuels and lubricants 2,208 20487
Water for technological necds 1478 1,359
Chemicals 973 941
Oher _ 20049 1,667
9406 5,233
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8. Equnﬁeei for hired services

In thousands af BGN 2008 204¥7
Annual water tax 4913 5,063
Repairs and maintensance of non-current assets 4,019 3459
Insurance 1.046 1,035
Bent 1,281 1,131
Oifier services 12,618 11,244

23,877 21,932

Other expenses for hired services include:

Security 45232 3,167
Water — meters reading 1,0a7 1,647
Courlers 755 68
Printing services 676 B
Technical services 1.417 1,188
Consultancy 535 759
Asphalt covering 288 313
SEWRC fee 477 473
Sterilization 24 el
Communication 410 445
Yearly sofoware licenses 382 405
Hired transportation a7 12
Other 1463 1,071

IE,GIE_ [ 1,244

9. Salaries, remuneration and other personnel benefits

In thousands of BOGN 2008 2007
Salaries and remuneration 10,850 9,432
Pensions and social security expenses . 2 080 1,004
Social expenses 79 562
Lixpenses for additional pension contribution 218 195
Woucher expenses 1,237 819
Retirement compensation 303 203
14,767 13,118

The salary expenses include an accrual for unused annual paid leave at the amount of BGN 516 thousand (2007
BGN 416 thousand}. The pension and social security expenses include an accrual for social and health security for
unused annual paid leave at the amount of BGN 9! thousand (2007: BGN 106 thousand). The amount of the
relirement compensation includes the recognized actuarial loss, determined when calculating present value of the
pension liability obligation for personnel (see note 23) in accordance with the option stated in paragraph 95 of TAS
19 “Emplovee benefirs®,

23
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1. Other expenses

11.

In thousands of BGN 2008 2007
Impairment of receivahles 6,053 5,395
Write down of inventories to net realizable value 260 319
COmne-off taxes 186 200
Scrapping of non-current assets 47 29
Frovisions 2,540 251
Others 1,294 | &

10382 6,472
Finance income and expenses
In thousands of BON 2008 2007
Interest income 233 154
Effect from guarantee discounts 82 o7
Interest income form SWAP transactions 214 -
Gain from subsequent measurement of derivative - 12
MNet foreign exchange pains i 284 213
Financial incomes 313 478
Interest expenses for Loan “A™ based on effective interest rate method {3,984) (4,766)
calculations
Interest expenses for Loan “B" based on effective inferest rate method (3,195 ¢ 10,950
calculations
Interest expenses for Loan “C” based on effective interest rate method (59) -
calculations
Finance charges on finance leases (1313 (B&)
Interest expenses on retirement compensations’ liabilities (44} {27
Effect from guaraniee discounts {35 {41)
Interest expense from Tax assessment act - (1,837
Other financial expenses - ey (626)
Financial expenses (8,219} (18,333)
Net finance expenses {7.406) {17.855)
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12

Income tax expensc

In thousands of BON 2008 2007
Current corporate incomes tax expense 2,777 {1,357}
Deferred taxes 2,270 -
(207} (1,287
Reconciliation of effective tax raie 2008 2007

It thowsands of BGN

Profit before tax 16.871 _aaw
[ncome tay using the domesric corporation tax rate 10.00% 1,687  10L0O0% 23
Expenses not recognized for tax purposes 0.24% 4] 1000 233
Ellect of thin capitalization - s {113
Tax effects on temporary differences {7.26%) (1,225} 39.00% 427
Met carrent income tax expense 2O8% 503 5R.50% 1,387

1o 200% the Company includes in ils (inancial statements deferred taxes, the net effect of which i3 3 deterred tax asset
that equals BGN 2,502 thousand, of which BGN 2270 thousand are recognized in the Income statement, BGN 232
thousand ere recognized in the Statement of changes in equity (also see note 2U). Dieferred taxes have been recognized
for the first time in 2008, due to events indicating that the Company will be able to perform under normal conditions and
will have profits in the shart run, at which the deferred tax asset will he realized.
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13. Property, plant and equipment

In thowsands of BGN

Cost

Ralance ar 1 JTanuary 2007
Acquisitions

Disposals

Transfers

Bulunce at 31 Dec 27

Ralance at | January 2008
Acquisitions

[haposals

Transfers

Ralance at 31 Dec 20058

Depreciation

Balance at 1 Tamuary 2007
Thepeciation charge for the vear
Depreciation charged om
disposals

Balance at 31 Thec 2067

Balance at | Jamwary 2008
Depreciation charge for the year
Deprociation charged o
disposals

Balance at 3! Dec 2008

Carrying amount
AL 1 Janvary 2007
A3l December 2007

At | January 2008
At 31 December 2008

Land and  Plant and Vehides Water network  Leasehold Asgets under Total
buildings  eguipment improvements  improve- construction
ments
1.264 17.572 427 59,443 16,573 26,476 2R 060
- |6 226 - - 4,169 15,491
- (341} (28) - - = {365)
e 1470 = 8,115 2,636 (12,221) -
1,264 19,797 6,25 67,558 15,508 28424 143,182
1,264 £9.797 5,623 67,558 15,50% 28,424 143,182
- 2078 2,318 - - 20,749 25,140
(2} {3u4) {d1d) = = = (8160
- 1.61% - 15,327 1,259 (18,2420 _ .
1,267 23,100 8,530 52,885 20,205 3931 187518
{188) 6,283) [1.9G%) {8,933) (6.308) (23,8801
{43 (1,714 (1.635) (2.833) (1,847 0 (8.076)
- 320 12 e - 332
(23D (7.677)  (3.591) (17713 (8,354) : (31624}
V231 a7y (3,391 (11,771} (%.354) - [31.624]
(43 i1,925) (883) (3,363) (2,08) C (B,226)
S 351 aE3 . - 734
(274) (92513 (4,083) (15,136) (160.362) (39,116)
1081 11,289 4,459 a0510 10,363 20476 1M, 18]
_1.038 12,120 3,034 55,787 11,155 28,424 | IL,558
1,038 12,12 3,034 55787 11,155 28424 111,558
993 13,845 4,437 7,749 10,443 30931 128402
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

Property, plant and equipment {continued)
Acquisirions

During 2008 assets at the amount of BGN 23,146 thousand have been acquired {2007 BCN 15490 thousand). Major
assets amounting BGM 19,635 thousand are stated below (2007: BGN 11,883 thoasand):

I thausands of BON 2000 207
Machinery and equipment in the water treatment plants and laboratories 366 1.215
Valves and hydrants 756 1.471
Water muins and house connections 11,779 3,805
Hydrophoves RLik) 385
Sewerage mains and house conneclions 3,050 3,480
Vehicles and mechamzation 2452 PAT
Warer meters 863 789
19,635 11,883

Property, plant and equipment under construction

Ar 31 December, 7008 assets under construction amount o BGN 30,931 thousand (2007 BGN 28,424 thousand). ‘The
major assels under construction amounting to BGN 25,824 thousand are stated below: (2007 BGN 27,614 thousand):

In thousands af BGN 2008 204¥7

24 siage of strengthening of Beli Tekar Dam 381 581

Machinery and equipment in Waste water treatment plant —sludge carbonation 14,016 13,825

installation, methane-tank reconstruction

Construction ol water main system, water-main net model and DMA zones for 83497 208

reduction of unmersred water quantifics

Building of chlorinating stalions 77 330

Construction of sewerage mains and sewerage model 6,953 4,670
19824 17,614

Assers, pledped as collateral

“The Company has pledged all its present and future tangible assets in respect to secured bank loan “A”,

A specific pledge on the leased vehicles has been set up in favor of the lessor. These are autemobiles and construction
machines with a carrying amount of BGN 1,137 thousand (2007 BGN 1416 thousand).

-2
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Sofyska Voda AD
Consolidoted financial statements as at 21 December 2008

Motes to the consolidated financial statements

14.

15,

Intangible assets
In thousands of BON

Ronk value

Balance at | Tanuary 2007
Acquisitions

Balance at 31 December 2007

Balance at 1 January 2008
Acvquisitions
Balance at 31 Tecember 2008

Amoriization

Balance at | Tanuagy 2007
Amortization for the year
Balance at 31 Becember 2(007

Balance at | JTanuary 2008
Amortization for the year

Balance at 31 December 2008

Carrviao amannts
L ArraIEG T TS

Al | January 2007
A1 31 Decamber 2007

Al | January 2008
At 2] December 2008

Acquired assels

Goodwill  Development Software Total
cosls
7,393 15,649 13,312 39354
- 2,250 134 2.3%4
7.393 20,859 13,46 _4l S8
7.393 20,859 13,446 41,738
- - 86 24
7303 ) HG0 13,532 41,824
- (L2045 (5.228) (17,271
- £2,992) (1,335) 4,327
- (15.035) {6,563} (21,598
- (13,053) 6,563 i21,398)
- {3,123} {1,248) (4.4710)
- (1¥,138) (7,911 L 26,065
7.393 6,606 2084 22,0873
7,303 5,864 G,283 20,140
7.393 5,864 6,883 20,140
7.393 2,741 5621 15,755

The acquisition with the greatest value in 2008 represents atangible assels - purchased software for the
implementation of the new Company’s website and soltware amouating BGN 3% thousand and software for Lhe
needs of the Control centre amounling BGN 32 thousand.

Inventories
In thousands aof BGN

Spare parts and consumables

Stock write down to net realizable value

Inventories pledged as coilateral

2008 2007
2,553 7040
(973 {713
910 1,327

The Company has pledged all its present and future supplies. raw materials and mventory in respect of secured

bank loan “A™,

L]
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Sofiyska Voda AD

Consolidated finaneial statements as ar 31 December 2008

Notes to the consolidated fimancial statements

16.

17.

Trade and other receivables
In thousands of BGN Mote 20408 2007
Trade recetvables 53,573 G483
Impairment losses on trade receivables (27640 C(33,6449)
Related parties receivables 2B 82 50
Prepayments and deferred expensss 3,740 1.659
Tax receivables 2 812
Court receivables L6E6 1219
Impuirment Josses on court receivables (1.602) {1, 1582
Other receivables T 156
50,629 24,572

In 2008 fully provided receivables with an expired 3-year validity period were writien off, amonnting at BGN 11,202
thousand. (For detailed information about changes in receivables’ impairment see note 24.)

Accounts recelvable pledged as collateral

The Company has pledged all its accounts receivable, o be collected in the future in any local currency bank
account, general receivables accounts from any party and insurance receivables relaled to any account receivable
under the requirements of bank Joan “A™.

By a contract signed by the Company in relation to bank loan "C”, current and future receivables ol the Company
amounting al a mininmm of EUR 200 thousand have been pledged as collateral.

The Company’s exposure 10 interest rate risk and the sensilivily analysis of all financial assets and liabilities arc
reported in Note 24 — Financial Instruments.

Prepayments and deferred expenses include:

I theusands of BGN 2006 2007
Insurance L0353 763
Licenses 53 53
Subscriptions f 15
Advimee payment for defivery of biogas equipment 2,219 -
Other _ 205 GER
3,749 1,654
Cash and cash equivalents
In thowsands af BOGN 2nn8 2007
(ash in hand % — 38
Local currency 31 21
Foreign clrrency 15 13
Cash al banks 11,036 9,075
1.ocal currency G20 R
Foreign currency 1,636 73
Cash and cash equivalents in the statement of cash flows 11,082 4,113

Cesh at banks pledged as collateral

The Company has pledged all its bank accounts under the requirements of a bank loan “A”. These accounts will be
used for collection of cash from accounts receivable plus any insurance claims payable to the Company in relation o
insurances against losses and potential damages.



Sofiyska Voda AD
Consulidated financial statemenis as ar 31 December 2008

INotes to the consolidated Nnancial statements

17.

18!

19.

Cash and cash equivalents (conlinued)

The Company’s exposure Lo Interest rate risk and a sensitivity analysis of all financial asscts and labilities are stated
in Moe 24,

Share capital and reserves

In thousands af shares Ordinary sharuvs

2008 2007
Lssued at | January B, R 8884
Instaliment in kind _ =
Issued as ac 31 December — fully paid 5,884  REE4

As at 31 December 2008 the Company’s share capital includes 8,884,435 ordinary shares (2007: 8,884.435). All
shares have a nominal value of BGN 1. Shareholders in the Company as at 31 December 2008 are:

e United Utitities (Sofia) BV - 6,850,000 ordinary shares (77,17}
¢ Vodosnabdyavane i Kanalizalsia AT - 2,034,435 ordinary shares (22,99).

With pledged endorsement dated 19 December 2000 1n favor of the bank which provided secured bank loan “A”,
6.850.000 ordinary shares have been pledged and this fact is inscribed in the shareholders’ book based on a contract
for pledge of shares.

The holders of ordinary shares possess dividend rights and veting rights at the Company’s General Sharsholders
Mecting of one vote for each share in their possession. All shares rank egually with regard to the Company’s
residual assets.

Legal reserves

Legal reserves represent 10% of the protit after tax in accordance with the requirements of art. 246 of the Bulgarian
Commercial Act,

Lnterest-bearing loans and horrowings

This note provides information for the contractual terms of the Company's interest-bearing loans and borrowings.

In thowsands of BON Naote 2008 20467
Non-current liabifities
T.oang at nominal value 118,175 [ 10,517
Atortizalion (1,754) 92
Loans at amortieed cost 164210 110,908
Dinance leace lahilities 1,030 _ 383
117451 111,498
Current liahilifies
Loans &t nomninal value 4,369 13,365
Amortization 372 143
Loans at amortized cost 4740 13,504
Finance lease liabilities 632 20
5,393 13,828
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

19, Interest - bearing loans and borrowings (continued)

20,

The Company's exposure to Interest rale risk and a semsitivity analysis of all financial assets and labilines are
stated in Motz 24 - Financial Instruments,

[n accordance with the loan agreement with EBRD the company has the obligation to maintain an ADSCR of L3:1.
The ADSCR should show that ar any Calculation Date (31 December) the Free Cash Flow for the (welve month
period immediately preceding such Calculation Date divided by the aggregate amount of principal and interest
pavmenis falling due and payable during such pericd should be 1.3:1.

Terms arnd debt repayment schedule

In thewsands of BGN Total  Lessthan 1-22-5years Morethan 5
¥eAr  YCATs years

Secured bank loans (nominal value)

Loan , A" (1,75 % + Euribor) 49 863 4,056 4,056 13,343 28,408

Loan ,B™ {5,95% + BEuribor) 71,117 TLLT

I.gan 07 [2,50% + Euribor) 1,564 313 164 1,087

Finance lease labilities 1,682 652 94 236 -
124,224 5.021 3014 14,666 Q0,525

Pursuant to an agreement dated 19 May 2008, the interest rate on Loan “B” is changed from o six-month Enribor +
13% o a six-month Buribor + 5.9%. The change comes into force s of 1 January 2007. The effect from the reduction
for 2007, in the amount of BON 4,456 thousand, has been recognized in 2008,

Finance lease liabilities

The financial lcase Bahilities are due as follows:

Future Interest Present value Foture Inicrest Present value of
minANEn ol future lease roinimum future lease
lease payments lease payments
pavinents payments
In thousands of BGN 2008 20408 2008 2007 20017 2007
Lass than | vear T 128 632 383 63 320
Between | and 2 years 563 71 794 382 36 346
2w 5 years 1 38 236 23] g 43
_ 1.219 237 1,682 1,014 17 Q0L

Deferred tax asscts and liabilities

The not defereed Tax assets are recognized in the consolidated financial statements. The reporting of the ealsting

Assels Liakilitics Nei
In thourands of BGN 2008 2008 2008
Properly, plant and equipment - (1.840) {1.5a0)
Inventories a7 97
Trade receivables 2,857 - 2857
Provisions 254 - 254
Accrual for unused paid leave 04 - 94
Liabilities for retitement compensations 73 - 3
Inceme of Bulgarian individuals 93 - 91
Hedging instrumcns 232 - 232
Teade payables 612 S 642
Deferred tax assets! {liakilines) 4,342 (1,840 202
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20. Deferred tax assets and liahilities (continued}

21.

The change 1n deferred tax assets and liabilities is presented below:

Ion thengsonds of BON

Property, plant and cquipment
Inventories

Trade receivahles

Frovisions

Accrual for unused paid leave
Liabililies for retirement compensations
Tncome of Bulgarian individuals
Hedging nstruments

Trade payables

Deferred tax assets/ (liabilities)

Recognized Recognized — Balance at
in the in equity 31 December
income 2008
statement

- (1,543% - {1,800
a7 - a7
- 2837 - 2,857
- 254 - 254
- 04 5 S
. =5 T3
- &1 - 91
S 232 232

. 642 - 642
- 2,270 232 2.502

When defining current ankl deferred taxes, the Company uses the accounting principles, destribed
deferred tax for 2008 is calculated on the basis of the rales of taxation, applicable o the Company. 1.2. for 2009 that is

the legal rate of income tax, amounting to 10%.
Trade and other payables
in thousands of BON

Trade payables

Payables (¢ employess

Social security pavables

Payables for water usape [ax

Other payables and aceruals (see the able below)

Other pavables and accruals include:
It thousands of BUN

Suppert of water-main and sewerage nerwork
Securily

Cjuarantees

Insurance

ISPA

Reading of moters

Advance payment on Emissions Reduction Purchase Agreerment

Others

in note 3. The

I 27
6,633 3,725
2,491 2,120
695 533
404 4,107

B 12,156 5511
22 3%2 16,091
2008 2007
2,542 2,400
KLY 336
1,578 997
538 830
703 47
160 -
4,922 -
1,444 701
12,156 5,611

The Company’s exposure to Interest rate risk and the sensitivity analysis of all financial assets and liabilities are stated

in MNote 74 — Financial Instrumets

(%]
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Sofiyska Voda AD
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Notes to ithe consolidated financial statements

22. Provisions

In thowsands of BOGN 2008 2007
Provision for court liabilities Fehy 751
L-lﬂbl].l'[}' p]-[“.-i__l,-iuu in accordance with the Settlement Agreemenl hatween 2,000 -
S5V and the Municipality of Sofiz
2,540 251
The change in provisions ihroughou) the yean 15 piesenied helow:
Io thousands of BON Balance at | Provisions Frovisions Cancelled Discount  Balance al 31
Tanuary 2008  made during  used during provisions effect December
Lhie wear the year during the 2B
year
Frovision for court
liabilities 251 540 (251} - - 340
Liability provision in
accordance to the
Settlement Agreement
between SY and MOS - 2,000 - - - 2,000
251 2,540 251} - - 2,540
23. Tax liabilities
in thousands of BON 241 2007
Corporate Lax liability 593 1,387
Other tax liabilities 198 462
1,091 1,849

24. Financial instruments

Credil risk
The value of the financial instruments represents the maximum credit exposure. This maximum credil exposure at the
balance sheet date is:

In thousands of BON Book value Book value

31 December 2008 31 December 2007

Trade and other receivables 26,101 26,845
Cash and cash equivalents 1,082 O3
Therivative . (514
37,183 KRR

The meximum credit exposure, before impairment, at the balance sheet date for all trade receivables prepared by groups of

CUSIIMETS:
in thonsands of BGN Cost Cost
31 December 2008 31 December 2407
State budget organizations 561 492
Commoercial customers 5.258 5,224
Domestic population 4,283 42,789
Other customers 7,553 11,023
53,657 0,533




Sofiyska Voda AD
Consolidated financial staiements as at 31 December 2008

Notes to the consolidated financial statements

24. TFinancial instruments {eontinued)

The ageing structure of wade receivables of the Company at the balance sheet date is:

In thousands of BGN 2008 2008 2007 2007

Cost Tmpairment Cost Impairment
Mot makured 12,490 - 12,231 -
Overdue 30 days 3524 [176) 2971 (14%)
Orverdue from 31 o 120 days 6,010 (702} 5673 {356)
Overdue from 121 to 210 days 3,979 (1439 3,830 (683)
COverdue from 211 10 270 days 2,245 (1,571} 2,088 (1,043)
Crverdue from 271 to 360 davs 2.997 {2,942) 3,008 {2,857
Overdue more than | year 22,412 (224173 30,732 (28,539}
_ 53,657 (20.2472) 60,533 {33,6449)

The Company's receivables impairment at the reporting date, including court receivables impairment is:

fn BON thousands 2008 2007

Al the beginning of the period (34.808) (29.917)
Change during the period (6,035} (3,395
Cancelled 1L
Written-off 11,621 -
At the end of Lhe period (29,242) (34.807)

Liguidity risk

The foilowing are the contactual matwrities of finapcial liabilities, ncluding estimated interest paymenis and
excluding the impact ol netling agreements:

31 December 2008
Book value Contractual Upto 1year Between 1 Between 2 More than 5

In thousands of BGN cash flows and 2 years =5 years year
Mon-derivative financial
liahilities
Loan A" {1.75% + Euribot) 44,123 {90,712} L k407 5995 (41,892 (B, 722)
Loan ,B” (5.93% + Furtbor) 71,483 {122,352) (8,774 (16,173)  (58.822) (38,583
Loan ,(C” {2.5% + Euribor} 1,536 {1,790) (391) (715} (684 .
Liabilities to related parties 9,652 {9,652) {9.632) - -
Trade and other payables 19,153 {19193} (19,193) - -
150,007 (243,699 {26,103) (10,893} (101,398) (105,305)
Derivative financinl Labilities
SWAP Contracts for interesi risk 2323 {2,323) 32
hedging _ - -
2323 (2.3234) (2,323 c - =

14
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24, Financial instruments (continued)
Liquidity risk

31 December 2007

fn thousand of BGN Book value Contracted Up 1o 1 year Between | Between 2 More
cash flows and 2 —5 years than 5
VEars Years
Non-derivative financial
liabilities
Loan . A™ (3,5 % + Buribot) 52314 (74,112} (E.E54) (R,925) (27502) (28.846)
Loan JB7 (13% + Euriber) T2,101 (124 51%) {24,100 19490 (490527 (34,874
Liakilities to relared partics 3,237 (12,237 (13,237} - - -
Trade and other payables 12 439 (13,459 (13,439 - - -
_ 151,093 {225.306) (56.615) (28417) (76,354 {63,720
Currency risk
3 December 2008 31 December 2007
EUR LBEY Sy EITR GRF ush
Trade payables (4342,670)  (213,727)  (4R6.484) (4716.687)  (661.813) (487,669
[nterest bearing (61,949,133 - - (63,613,263) - -
loans and
bOTTOWINgES
Gross Balange (66.201.80%)  (215,727)  (486.484)  (68,329950)  (661813)  {457.669)
Expasurs .

The [ollowing significant exchange rales are applied during these periods:

Ush |
GBF 1

Sensitivity Analysis

Average period FX rate

2008 2007 2008
1.33683 142937 1.3RTIL0
2440345 2. BO00S 20074530

FX rate at balance sheet date

2047
1.33122
2.06172

A 10 % strengthening of the BGN exchange rate at 31 December 2008 against the lollowing currencies would have
increased {decreased) equity and profit or losse by the amounts set out below. This analysis assumes that all other
variables, in particular interest rales, remain constant. The analysis is performed on the same busis for 2007

fn thousands of BUN

SRR

31 Trecember 240
LSTy
GRP
31 December 20407

ush
GBF

A 10 % decrease of RGN against the above currencies as at 31 December would have the same, 23 amounts,

Equity

the opposite effect, making the same assumption that all other variables are fixed

Bulgaria operates under the conditions of a Currency board, The exchange rate of BGN is currently

| 95583 BON for | EUR. All deals, not undertaken in BGN are undertaken in ELIR.

Profit or loss

{67)
(43)

(65)
(176}
Inut

fixed 1o
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Notes to the conselidated financial statements

24. Financial instruments {continued)
Interest rate risk

FProfile

As al the reporting date the interest rate profile of financial instruments is:

in thousands of BON 2008 2007

Instruments with fixed interest rate

binancizal assets 11,036 9073

Financial liabilities e -

11,034 QA

Instruments with variahle inlerest rate

Financial assets 26017 26, Rdd

Financial liabilitics {121,162) ] (124417
(95,145) {97,573)

Interest rate risk
Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed rate instruments

The Compuny has not accrued financial asscts and liabilities with [ixed interest rate at fair value, acceunted through
profits and loss in the Income statement. The Company has derivatives (Intercsi swaps) as hedge instruments
according the model for hedging the fair value, Therefore the change of the inlerest rates for the period between the

signing of the SWAP contracts and the report date doss notresult in any profif o7 lags.

Fair value sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments

A change of the interest levels with 100 hasic points as at 31 December would have increased ({decreased) the equity
and profit ot loss with the amounts shown below. This analysis 2ssumes that all ather variables, in particular
exchange rales, remain constant. The analysis is performed on the same basis for 2007,

Effects in thousands of BON Change effect in Profit or loss Change effect in Equity
100 basic 100 basic points  1{{} basic points 10} basic points
points increase decrease increase decrease

31 December 2008

lostruments with floating (931) 051 - -
miterest rate

Financial instrument hedging 132 {448)

the interest rate risk _

Cash Mow seasitivity (net) (819 503 - -
31 December 2007

Instruments with floating (976} ui6 . -
interest 1ae

Czsh flow sensitivity {net) 976) o976 - -
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24.

25,

Financinl instruments (continued)
Interest cale risk (continued)

Fair values versus carmying amounts

The fair values ol [inancial assets and liabilities, togather with the carrying amounts shown n the balance sneel,

wre as Tolloas:

Ir thousands of BON 31 December 2004 31 December 2007
Carrying Fair value Carrying Fair value
anwunt amount
Trade and other receivables 26,878 26,878 27101 27.101
Cash znd cash equivalents 11,082 11,082 9,113 g,113
Dierivatives - - 60 ol
Loans from related partics (11496063 {1 19,606) (124417 (124417
Liabilitizs to related parties (9,652) (9,652 (13,237) (13,237}
Loan .7 {1,556 [1.556] - -
Trade and other payables (19,193) (19.193) {13,439} (13,439)
Hedging financial instrument (2,323) {2,323) - -
{114,370) (114,370% {114,819 {114,219

As i 3 Drecenier 2008 the Company has a foan A7 lability with 2 nominal value of RGN AR, 123 thousand and
2 Tnan “B” with & nominal value of BON 71,483 thousand. With a SWAP transaction letrer agreement [rom 12
November 2008 the Company fixed its interest rate as regards the six-month CURIBOR for the previously stated
loans. As concerning loan “A” the fixed mwerest rate is 3.694%, and concerning lnan "B the fixed interest raw is
3.650% wuntil 2013. {for the period of the approved Business Plan )09-1013). Both contracts are fur 5 year

peticds.

Liabilities for retirement compensation

Present value of the liability for defined contributions for relirement

In thousands ef BON

Present value of the liability at | January
Interest expense

Currenl labor cost

Adciiiarial 1053

Paid compensations to retired employees
Present value of the Lability at 31 December

Liability recognized m the balance sheet as at 31 December,

inchiding:
Short - term liabilities for retirement compensations
Long — term lighilities for refirement compensations

2008 2007
s 492
44 7
91 81
212 122
(188) (130
751 592
751 542
126 P88
425 404
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25. Liabilities for retirement compensation {eontinued)

Expenses recogaized in the income statement

In thowsands of BON 2008 2007
Current labor cost a1 Bl
Interest canense A4 27
Actuarial loss 212 122

Actuarial assumpiions

2005 207
Disgount rate at 31 December 6.3% 3%
Salary increase (annual for 10 years) 5% 5%
Emploves turnover 13% 114

The actuarial assumptions for death rates are based on the National Statistics Institute’s population mortality labies
For the purposes of the discounting effective annual interest rate i = 3% is used. It corresponds o annual discount
rate d = 6.5 %. This rate is calcuiated analyzing the long-term investment instruments offered on the Bulgarian

sluck market.
Actiarial assumpions
In thowsands of BGN (ne basis point Omne basis point
increase of salaries decrease of
growih salaries growth
Effect of the liability for retiresnent compensaiion 17 (173
n thousands of BUGN One basis point One basis point
increase of interest decrease of
growih interest growth
Effect of the hability for retirement compensalicn (18] 18

3d
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26. Contingent liabilities
(a) Bank gudrantees

A bhank puarantee for the amount of USD 750 thousand is issued for good pecformance of the Company per the
Concession Coniract,

The bark prarantee expires on 19 December 2003,

(b Infrastructure

In accordance with a contract dated 02 Julv 2(M}5 belween the Republic of Bulguna, represented by the Minister of
Economy and Energy (fhe State) and Business Park Sofia EOOD and Lindner AG, Germany {the Invester), the State
will finance the construction and rehabilitation of elements of the technical infrastructure in & project “Sofla Park™. In
accordance with this contract Businezs Park Scfia EOOD and Lindner AG, Germany are obliged o maks imvesiments
in project “Sofa Park™ in compliasce with an approved investment plan, which includes buildings, roads and technical
infrastructure. The total amount of the state participation under the conditions of the contract is BGN 13,650 thousand,
including water main infrastructure in the amount of BGN 6,103 thousand.

Pursuant to a decisicn of the Commission for Protection of Competition from Ocicher 2005, the State financial
nbligations will not represent state aid if in a three menths period from the construction of the new water main
infrastructure, an annex is prepared to the Concession Agreement with the aim t recover the amount of the water main
infrastructure expenditure from Soliyska Voda AD w the Sofia Municipality.

The Company has filed a claim with the Supreme Administrative Court. against the decision of the Commission for
Pratection of Competition, The final decision of the Supreme court {dated 07 June 2007} rejects the appeal of Sofiyska

Tr_d. AT
LTIV N

Irrespective of the fact that the construction works on the water-main and sewerage system, related to the decisions of
hoth the Commission for Protection of Competition and the Supreme Administrative Courl, has nol yet begun the
Company has initiated negotiations with Softa Municipality on the reinstaternent ol the eguivatent consideration in the
Concession contract.

27. Obhgations for the acquisition of property, plant and equipment

As per the Concession Agreement with Sofia Municipality from 23 December 1999, the Company must make a
minimurn capital investment during the first 15 contractual years, counted as from the date of this contract, amounting to
not less than USD 150 million, based on the investment plan [or the Concession period. Non-fulfilment of 75% (in
vahae) of these capital investments, based on the investment plan for & period of two conseculive vears may result in
termination of the Concession Agreement by the Grantor.

Thiz article from the contract has been amended by a Second Annex to the Concession Agreement, signed after the
balance sheet date. Pursoant o this Second Annex to the Concession Agreement, a precondition Tor termination is a 73%
non-fulfilment of the projected and approved investments by the State Commission for Energy and Water Regulation, in
pwi consecutive years, during the same repulatory period and provided that the prices to allow for those investments
have been approved by the Regulator.

In its decision Mo: BIT008 09102008 the State Commission for Epnergy and Water Repulation approved the Businass
Plan of the for the second regulatory period 2000 — 2013, This decision also approved the propesed Investment
programme ol Sofiyska Voda AT amounting to BON 240 million.

The investment obligations of Sofivska Voda ATY are presented helow:
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27. Oblipations for the acquisition of property, plant and equipment (continued)

M BGN thousands K 2010 2011 01z 2013 Total
Concession Apreement obligations 13,951 14,566 13,550 10,775 11,419 64.261
Business Plan obligutions 52,50 32, 1M 41,700 43 000 51,104 240,400
Oibligations under the Settiement

Agreement with the Municipality of Scfia 7,495 2,000 1,300 - - [0,795

73,546 H8,006 56,550 33,775 62,510 315,456

The Tnvestment Program of Sofiyska Voda AD has been prepared in compliance with the Business Plan technical
parameters, such as: the forecast consumption volumes, the unaccounted-for-water (UT'W) reduction programme, capital
maintenance and reconstruction of the water maing needs, congtruction of new service connections and with a view tw
the achievement of the long-term key performance imdicators for the water and sewerage service levels. The
implementation of the Investment Program will be financed by bank credit, ISPA financing and own funds.

The implementation of the above mentioned investments is dependent on the prices o be approved by SCEWR during
the regulatory period. The price increases proposed in lhe spproved Business plan are 10% annual increase for the water
supply price and 15% annual increase for sewerage and wastewater treatment price during the period 2000-2013.
Sofivska Voda AD may implement the full capacity of its investment program only if the above mentioned projected
increases are approved by SCEWR. The price period is one year. As notified in the anncuncement as of 01012009 the
Company is already applying new prices for the delivered services and started the implemerntation of its annual
investment obligations on the total amount of BGM 52.5 million,

28. Related parties

The Company has & related party relationship with its parent company — “United Utilities TU (Sofia) B.V.", which
holds 77,10% of the Company®s shares, as well as with the other companies in the Group.
The lollowing transactions have taken place during 2008

Rcelated party Relation Transactions during the vear  Balance as at 31 December 2008
In thowsands of BOGN Receivables Payables
WLUnited Whilities UU Controls 77. 109 of the Loan provvided - 71,483
{Soliay BV™ shares of “Sofiyska Liability for loan
Voda™ AD - received aL amortized
Accrued interest cost
3,195 44
{ither
LUnited Uilicies Comtrols 50% of the Services rendered under a a2 5011
International shares of |, United contract for technical services
Limited™ Utilities U'U {Sofia) BY™ 1417
and 30% of the sharcs of CHher
nited Utilibes — 53

Europe Holdings BY ™

LWUnited Urilities — Controls 50% of the - S 4,597
Europe Holdings shares of ,United
By ™ Ulilities UL {Sofia) BV
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Related party
fn thousands of
BN

Livvanann Bnmls 4o
AL PP L AL

Reconstruction and
Development

Thz following transactions have taken place during 2007

Related party

In thowsandys of BON
WUnited Tilities T
(Sofia) BV"”

oUnited Uhilities

Internatonal Limited™

1 Inited TIlities — Burope
Holdings BV ™

Eurvpeun Bank [or
Feconstruction and
Development

28. Related pariies (continued}

Relation

Contrels 30%: of the
shares of , United
Utilities = Europe

Holdings BV

Relation

Controls 77.10% of the
shares of “Sofiyska Voda"
ATy

Controls 509% of the shares
of | Uniwed Tnlities TICT
(Sofia) BV and 50% of the
shares of |, Usited Ttilines
— Europe Holdings BY

Controls 50% of the shares
of , Umted Thilites UU
(Sofiny BY™"

Conlrols 50% of (he shares
of JUnited Uilities
LBurcpe [loldings BY

Transactions daring the year

Tentrmmenmt swaniee s
AldLhd Rl ek Lk A

3488

Total:

Transaclions during
the year

Lyan provided

Accrued mierest
10,950

Olher

Services as per
"Technical Services
Agreement”
1,500
Crther
a0

Interest accrued
4,766

Total:

Ralance as at 31 December 2008

Receivables

Payables

.-D! |

48122
Liabality for loun
received at
amortized cost

129,258

Balance as at 31 December 20007

Receivables

% -

Payables
72.101
Loan liability at
amortized cost

441

7050

.043

52,316

Liabiliy Tor loan
received at amontized
Cost

137,654
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28. Related paries (conlinued)
Transactions with directors and officers on key pasittons

The Company has rclationship of a related party with directors and officers on key positions, The total amount of
the accountad remunerations, included i personnel expenses and in hired services are as follows:

In thousands of BGN 08 27
Eemuneration of the Board of Directors T T2
76 P

29. Subsequent events
fa) Seitfement Agreement between Sofiveka Vodoe AT and the Municipality of Sefia

In relation to the fulfillment of a condition precedenr to the Second Amendment Agreement to the Concession
Agreement, namely the settlement of zll past disputes between Sofiyska Voda AT and the Municipality of Sofia from
the date of the Concession Agreement o the cighth concassion year {inclusive) , a Settlement Agresment was drafied,
apreed by Safiyska Yoda AL shareholders and the Municipal Council and signed on 16 January 2009

The Parties agres that by virtue of the Settlement Agreament they fully and finally seltle all existing actions, Claims
andfor Disputes whether actual, pending or prospective and whether arising out of or in conmection with the
Concession Agreement, the Second Amendmemt Agreement or howsoever otherwise arising or existing directly or
indirectly between the Parties by virtue of their commerzial relationship or under the Taw.

Sofiyska Voda AD has agreed o satisfy Municipality of Scfia claims in the total amount ot BGN 26,5 min. and
Mumcipality of Solia has agreed 1o satisty Sofivska Voda AD claims in the total amount of BGN 4 mln. as detailed
below:

The claims from the Municipality of Sofia to SoftyskaVoda AT will be fmited o
fi) penalties due by Sofiyska Voda AT under Annex 4 o the Concession Agreement arising out of the failure of

the Concessionaire to duly perform its obligations under Annex 3 to the Concession Agreernent until Tznuary 2009
amounting to BGN 14,2 min.;

(i} expenses incurred by the Municipality of Solia in relation to securing the protection of water supply zones and
the equipment pertaining to the sanitary - security zones, part of which were in respect of the sanitary restricted area of
the Iskar Dam together with other parts of the water and sewerage system of Sofia City for the pericd from January
L5t 200 1o March 3 Ls, 2007 amounling to BGN 6 min, and

{uf)  payment of compensation for non-perfformance of the investment commiment undertaken by the
Conecessionaire for Contract Year 4 under Annex 5 to the Concession Apreement shall amount to BGM 2.3 min

Frie Clairms frof Sofiviid Voo AD o ire Muantcipafiiy of Softa will be (imfed fo:
(17 reimbursement of the Antecedent Liability Fund amounting to BGN 2.3 mln;

(i) reimbursement of halt of the funding for the Concession Dispute Resolution Board and its members amounting to
BN S ming

{ii{) reimbursement of half of the costs for the Study of the stability of the Beli 1skar Dam wall — stage 11 amounting
to BGN Q.2 min,
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29, Subseguent evenis (continued}

{a) Setttement Agreement between Sofivska Voda AD and the Municipality of Sofia

Tha claims will be satisfied in the following manner:

RGN 4 min. (due to Sofiyska Voda ALY will be set-olf against BGN 26.5 min. (due W the Municipality of Sofia);
BCN 2 mln. will be pavment in cash to a bank account designated by the Municipality of Sofia;

BGHN 2.5 min. will be invested by Sofiyska Voda AD in 2009 in addition ro the investments approved in the

company Business plan;

BGN 9.7 min will be invested by Sofiyska Voda AD in the period 2014-2023 in addition o the investments
approved in the company Business plan: and

BGN 2.3 min. will be mvested by Sofiyska Voda AD in the period 2009-2011 in projects from the the
imvestrments approved inthe company Business plan,

The parties mutually released any claims arising from accumulated interest on the disputed amounts.

(b} Approval of the new prices

On 22 December 2008 the Stare Commission for Energy and Water Regulation approved Sofiyska Veda AD prices
for the services provided by the company with a Decision M LI-O78(in accordunce wilh the already approved
Business plan). As of 1 January 2009 the price for the combinad water, wastewater and trealment services in the City
of Selia s BGIN 1.16Y per cubic meler {no VAT). The increase is 14,7 %6,
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Appendix 1 to the Consolidated financial sialements
Indicative effects from the application of IFRIC 12 “Service Concession Arrangements”

Sofivska Voda AD provides public services. According to the Concession Agreement, the company has specilic investment

obligations {for the first 15 vears) in the water and sewarege network and a subsequent obligation for the maintenance of
certain lavals of services.

Acearding o the Coneession Aoreement, Sofiveks Vods ATY has th
wastewaler and treatroent mlrasiructure,

The concession-related levels of services and prices of the company wers initially regulated by the Grantor (Municipality
of Sufia) and subsequently, after a change in the legislation, by the State Commission for Energy and Water Regulation
{SCEWR). During the concession period the Municipality of Sofia remains the owner of the public infrastructure through
which Sofiyska Voda AD provides its public services. Afler the end of the concession period the Company has an
obligation to return the assels which it operates and are in its balance sheet to the Municipality for further use.

1 |'I_ t eallect chargee from the neare af the warer

Sofyiska Voda AD bas the righl 1o collecl charges from the users of the water distribution infrastructure from the start of
the concession agresment

Considering the above, it may be concluded that according to the Concession Agreement oblipations Sofyiska Voda AID
has o apply TERIC 12 when it is approved by the European Commission.

As notified in note I to the these consolidated financial statements, the Company prepares its Financial statements in
aceordance with TFRS as adopted by the European Commission. IFRIC 12 was issued by the TASE on 30 Nuovember 2006
and 15 o be applied relrospectively lor accounting pericds starting on or after 1 Tanuary 2008, IFRIC 12 has not yet been
adopted by the Buropean Commission and this is expected to happen in 2004, The Company, however, is expecting

apply IFRIC 12 to its financial statements for the year ending 31 December 2009, subject to the European Commission
approval,

The expected major effects resulting from the applying IFRIC 12 are as follows:

L. Provisien under the Convession Agresment; According to IFRIC 12 a provision for the remaining public asset
vestment liabilities (in infrastructure) and meeling of the service level requirements for the Concession term
must he recognized in the balance sheat, This provision should be discountzd and intersst expenses increasing the
provision should be recognized each year.

En_'l

Public assels; According Lo IFRIC 12 the public non-current assets should be separated from the Company’s own
assets and recognized in the balance sheet as inlangible assets, as they are outside of the Concessionaire’s control,
but are rather considered as & right to use the public asseis [or the provision of Concession refated services, The
initial provision amount as per the Concession Agreement should also be included in the public assets amount,
Public assets are to be depreciated within the remaiuing Concessiun term period,

The Company is continuing to investigate the requirements of this TFRIC. The indicative consolidated income slalernznl

nd halanos chaor of the Mamnany in tha cpea of TEDID 13 el asactad oo e st Elen
IR ChAiiles Sileah ek A '-u-'\.ruj.t.luu LN LAl et LEL Ewlb- A4a JIJ.JI.IJL-II.I.\.rIII.l.I.I.I.l_I'II S I...qu_l_,luj_t_,u TWILL Ll L-LI.IJ.LpJ.J Liles aie ax
follows:
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Appendix | to the Consolidated financial statements (continued)
Tndicative effects from the epplication af IFRIC 12 “Service Concession Arrangements”
Consolidated income statement

For the year ended 31 December 2008

In BGN thousands 2008 [FRIC 12, 2008

(indicative)
Revenue 94,084 34,0584
Other ravenue 1,322 1,332
93,406 03 406
BExpenses tor materials (9,406 (9,008}
Expenses for hirad services (23,8771 (23.877)
Depreciation and amertization (12,697 (16,060
Salaries, remuneration and other personnel benefits (14,767) (14,767}
Oher operating expenses (10,382) (10,382}
Profit from operating activitics 24277 20,914
Finance income 213 813
Finance expense {8,219 (8219
[nterest, corrections and discounts - - (3438
Financing expense, {net) (7,406) (10,8443
Profit/{loss) hefore tax 15,871 10,0760
[ocome tax expense {307} (307}
Net profit for the year 16,364 9,563
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Appendix 1 to the Consolidated financial statements (continued)

Indicative effects fram the application of TFRIC 12 “Service Cancession Arranpenents”

Consolidated balance sheet

For the year ended 31 December 2008

Faind W'Y S
Ry

I BON thousaids 25 iFRIC 12, 20058
(indicative)
MNon-current asseis
Public assets 118,933 278716
Cran assets 17,831 17,831
Investments in relared parties s g
Croodwil] 7,393 7,393
Dislerred tax assets 4,342 4,342
Total non-current assets 148 498 s 2H2
Inventaries 1910 LUl
Trade and other receivables 30,624 30,629
Loans w related partics = -
Cash and cash equivalents 11,082 11,082
Total carrent assets 42621 43,621
Total assets 182,119 351,903
Equity
Share capiral 888 2,584
Eeserves (1.6%2) i(1,692)
Ketained carnings 21,505 14,704
Total capital and reserves 2E .60 21,894
Non-current liahdlities
Lnterest bearing loans and borrowings 116,421 [ 16,4321
Liabilities under firance leases 1,030 1,030
Deferred tax liability 1,844} LB40
Liabilities for retirement compensation 425 4725
Concession Azreement provision - 166,584
Total non-current liahilities 119716 246,300
Currcnt fiahilities
Tnterast hearing Inans and borrowinas 4741 4741
Liabilities under finance leases 632 652
T'ux Liabilities 1.091 1,09]
Payables to related parties 0,652 9,652
Trade and other payables 22,382 21,382
Derivative 2,323 2,323
Provisions 2,540 2.540
Liabilities for retirement compensation 326 326
Total current liabilities 43,707 43 707
Linhilitics 163,423 300,007
Tutal equity and liabilities 192,119 351,903
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CONSOLIDATED ANNUAL REPORT
SOFIYSKA VODA AD
2008

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Financialiy, 2008 was another successful year for Sofiyska Voda AD. Despite the late approval of
the 2008 water tariff, the company remains profitable and Earnings Before Interest and Tax EBIT
(EBIT} for the year is BGN 24.3 million (as compared to BGN 20,2 million in 20077,

As at the end of 2008, the revenue from main operating activity amounts to BGN 87,6 million,
which is (1.1% below the budgeted amount of BGN 87,9 million. The main reason for Lhal is the
delay in the tariff increase until first of June compared to the budgeted (15.9% budgeied increase
as of 1 April). The Company’s total revenue for 2008 is BGN 95,4 million and is 1.4% balow
budpeted.

The Company’s 2008 cperating expenses amount to BGN 785 million. The total current
expenses remained within the level approved in the budgel. 'I'he total variable expenses are 7.8%
above budgeted, the main reason being the increased material costs in 2008, as well as the BGN 2
million provision according (o an agreement with the Municipality uf Sofia, which is not included
in the 2008 budget.

Following the established practice, in May employees’ salaries were indexed with the annual
nflation rate. As a result, stafl expenses increased by 125 as compared ta 2007.

"The two-month delay in the new tariff approval, as well as the impossibility to absorb funds
under the additional EBRD loan resulled in 304% or BGN 11 million less investments
implemented as compared to the budget for 2008. In relation to that, the depreciation costs are
d4.8% less than budgeted, which is a saving of BGN 1,2 million.

The Profit hefore tax s BGN 16.87 million. which is BGN 6 million more as compared to the
2008 budget. The mam reason for that are the lower interest costs than budgeted, which is due to:

- The agreement dated 19 May 2008 between Sofiyska Voda AD and United Utilities
(Sofia) B.V., under which the two parties agreed to amend the Subordinated Loan
Agreement. As a result of this, the Subordinated Loan intercst rate was reduced from a
six-month Euribor plus 13% to six-month Euribor plus 5.95%. The amendment was in
effect of 1 January 2007, which is reflected in the 2008 financial reports.

Actual lower 6-month Euribor than the one used in the budgel and a positive effect of the
November swap transaction of the f-month Euribar

- Unabsorbed EBRD loan.
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Company's policy regarding financial risk, as well as its exposure to tariff, credit and
liquidity nisk are described in detail in the notes to the 2008 Financial Statements,

The Company uses derivative financial instruments in order to execute an interest hedge.

With SWAF transactions dated 12.11.2008, the Company executed two interest rate hedpes:



- with ING fixing the six-month Eurihor as per major loan agreement with EBRD for the
next 3 years to 3.694%;

= with Citibank fixing the six-month Euribor as per the Subordinated loan agreement for
the next 5 years to 3,650%.

In order to report the two comtracts in the financial repors, hedze accounting is applied.
Following their impairment, the effect in the financial reports is a financial liability to the total
amount of BGN 2.3 million. The annual saving from the hedging transaction results in a
reduction in the financial expenses in the amount of BGN 0.2 million,

All significant events alter the Balance Sheet date and their effects on the Company’s activity are
listed in Note 28 to the 2008 Consolidated Financial Statements.

REGULATION OF THE TARIFES OF THE. WSS SERVICES BY THE SCEWR

Sofiyska Voda AD started in year 2008 with a price lower than the one proposad for the provided
services, approved with the decision Ne [1-053/23.04.2007 (BGN 0,88 without VAT of the
combined service for the households). The prices proposed {amounting 1 BGN 1,02 without
VAT of the combined service for households) became effective gs of 01.06,2008 by virtue of the
Decision of the SCEWR Ne[l-018/26.05.2008 following the final satisfaction of the three
preconditions set in the previous Decision. Under these cireumstances SV made investments
amounting to BGN 25.2 million, which exceeds the pessimislic expectations but still it is lower
than required and set ones under Business Plan 2006 — 2008,

On 07.01.2008 Sofia Municipal Council adopted a Position on Sotfiyska Voda AD’s Business
Plan 20059 - 2013 As a whole the position is positive with some comments and
recommendations. With its letter No 37-00-3024 of 30.04 2008 the Municipality of Sofia agreed
on the amendments to the investment programme of the Business Plan 2009 - 2013, proposad by
SV, referring (o the transfer of additional tunds for investments in the sewerage nebwork by
decreasing the funds for the project for seismic reinforcement of the wall of Beli Tskar dam.
These funds amount to BGN 12,65 million.

With the letter ref. No B-17-44-22 of 07.05.2008 the SCEWR required the update of SV's
Business Plan using the actual data [or 2007 and its submission for a second considerarion.

The updated Rusiness Plan 2009 — 2013 was submitted to the SCEWR on 19.05.2008. 1i provides
for invesiment programme amounting to BGN 250 million in compliance with the applied
investment profile, tariffs of the services and revenues.

Following the discussions held with the representatives of the SCEWE, another profile of
investments, tariffs of the scrvices and revenues was approved in principle, and it guarantees

i : i Aret TEART AN i e
invesimenls amounting 1o about BON 240 milion,

On 22.12.2008 with its Decision Ne IT-078 the SCEWR approved the tariffs proposed for the
services provided by SV, required for the achievement of he targets set in the Company’s
Business Plan. In this way as of 01.01.2009 the combined tariff for households, amounting 10
BGN 1,169 /fwithout VATY, is effective for the water supply system /WS/ Sofia. The increase is
14,7 %



RENEGOTIATION OF THE CONCESSION AGREEMENT

Al its session held on 28.02.2008 the Sofia Municipal Council adopted the Second Amendment
Agreement Lo the Concession Agreement, On 19.03.2008 it was signed by Mr. Boyko Borisov —
Mayor of the Municipality of Sofia and Mr. Leslie Bell — Chairman of the Sofiyska Voda AD’s

Board of Directors. |

The implementation of several preconditions was required for the enforcement of the Second
Amendment Agreement, and the main one of them — the parties had w fully and finally settle all
disputes through negotiations within a period not longer than 30 days from the date of receipt by
each of the parties of the claims of the other Party. The implementation of this condition was also
critical for the disbursement of the main part of the loan agreement between Sofiyska Voda AD
and the EBRI.

I view of the implementation of its investment programme and the decision of the SCEWR for
the obtaining of the combined tarift of BGN 1,02, Sofiyska Voda AD negotiated an additional
loan of BGN 50M with the EBRD. With its Decision Ne 228 of 24.04.2008 the SMC approved
the project for the Loan Agreement between Sofiyska Voda AD and the EBRD. On the grounds
of this decision the Mayor of the Municipality of Sofia signed a letter of consent, through which
the condition of the EBRD for signing the Loan Apreement was implemented. The Loan
Agreement was signed on 30.04.2008, and as a result of that on 27.05,2008 the current loan was
refunded, and on 30.05.2008 the first transfer amounting to Euro 0,6 million was made.

On 09.12.2008 the Municipality of Sofia filed its claims (supplemented with the letter dated
10.01.2000}, containing the position of the Crantor on the stated SV'5 failure o cxecute its
obligations under Annex 3 and respectively the penalties due by the Concessionaire under Annex
4, the stated failure to execute the obligations for the performance of investments on behalf of the
Concessionaire and the compensation claimed for this, as well as reimbursement of the expenses

for the security of the water catchment areas incurred by the Grantor.

CIn reply SV filed its claims (MoS ref. No 2600-12039/ 15.12.2008), conlaining  the
Concessionaire’s position on its rights and obligations under the Concession Agreement and the
Annexes to it, as well as the position on the stated Grantor's failure to execute its obligation to
reimburse (o the Concessionaire the sum from the Antecedent Liabilities Fund, half of the sums
pand tor the Concession Dispute resolution Board and its members, half of expenses incurred for
the study of the stability of the dam of Beli Iskar — II stage and compensate the Concessionaire
for the atising Tariff Restrictions.

Following the negotiations the parties reached Settlement Agreement, which was approved by the
SMC on 15.01.2009,

All consequences of the signed agreement are given in detail in the note “Subsequent cvents™ o
the Company’s Financial Statements.

CUSTOMER SERVICE

As a whole 2008 was a very successful year for customer service. The service improvement
influenced the customers’ safisfaction rate — 78.7% of the Company’s entire activity, and
enhanced receivables collection.



An important part of servicing our customers and enhancing their satisfaction with the
Company’s activity is customer relations. In 2008 Sofiyska Voda again worked actively on
improving and expanding the communication channels to customers.

Call Centre

The 24/7 Call Centre has 16 lines, on which operators receive between 1 000 and 1 500 calls per
day. We iry to answer calls within 10 seconds. The analysis of the customer enquiries shows that
the questions related lo operational activitics constitute most of the registered calls. In order to
optimize the communications between the Call Centre, where customer calls are received, and the
Control Room, where the signals are assigned for inspection and implementation. the two
departments were united into a Control Centre. In 2008, 436 114 customer calls were received,
which is almost as many as in 2007. The new Call Centre software introduced in 2007 gives the
possibility for real-time monitoring of the key performance indicators. In 2008 this resulted in a
much more accurate measurement of the results and as a whole improved customer service.

Customer Service Centers

The nine Customer Scrvice Centers of Sofiyska Voda AD, located in various parts of the city,
provide the full range of services that the Company offers. In 2008, over 1 00D 000 visits by
customers and almost 860 (000 payments have been registered, which is an increase by over 200%
as compared to 2007 (325 000). More and more customers use the Cenlers not only to pay their
bills, but also as places for receiving services, The reasons are in the numerous alternative
methods of hill payment.

Tn 2008, four Customer Service Centers were repaired, and two were given an entirely new and
modern appearance that results in the faster and generally better customer service.

In 2008, upon customers’ requests received at the Call Centre, Customer Service Centers. or
writlen enquiries, visits lo customer propertics were scheduled and implemented by:

= Terntory representatives — 25 300 visits:

- Cwer 28 300 visits for water meter sealing;

- Over 100 visits for water sampling in relation to signals received about
dubious water quality.

Water Meter Reading and Billing

Revenue meters are read monthly and individual meters — quarterly. In 2008 the number of read
water meters has increased by over 73000, In 2008, the number of read water meters has
increased by over 73 000,

As a whole, in 2008 over 6 (00 000 imvoices in total were issued, which is almost 4% more than
in 2007,

New Activilies

In 2008, the trend for seeking possibilities for expanding the scope of services offered hy
Sofiyska Voda AD continued. In 2008, the water meter delivery, installation and sealing service
was available on the territory of the entire city. As a result, 17 800 individual water meters were
installed (15 300 for 2007). The revenues from services in 2008 have increased by 22.5% as
compared to 2007. During the year, the Company launched two new services — delivery and
installation of remotely-read meters and metrological inspection of individual meters.



Receivables collection

Softyska Voda AD puts great effort in enhancing receivables collection by means of offering
various ways for bill payment by customers or by means of offering deferred payment schemed
for accumnulated debts. Afier the 2007 negative trend, in 2008 receivables collection (revenues
versus billed) increased from 94% to 95.86%. Despite that, the bad debt over | year old as at the -
end of 2008 increased by 29,3% as compared to 2007.

OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE
Managing Water Resources

The water management of Sofiyska Voda AD is based on consistent monitoring of the water
supplied to Sofia.
Water supplied in 2008:
1. Total water supplied from all potable water sources - 233 630 497 m?
* Including the Municipality of Samokov - § 968 809 m?
*  To the Municipality of Sofia - 224 661 688 m?,
2. Provisionally clean water for the industry - 10 631 962 m?

The monitoring data show that as compared to 2000 the Company has achieved an actual
reduction on the water volumes used for Sofia’s water supply.

The potable water supplies in 2008 as compared to 2000 has decreased by 42 miliion m* or 16%
The water volumes supplied to Sofia in 2008 have decreased as compared to 2007 by 6,6 million
m? or 3%

Reduction of Unrecorded Quantities of Water

In 2008 the unrecorded quantities of water (UQW) volumes increased slightly, from 56.60% to
56.82%.

The reduction of UQW is one of the main prierities of Sofiyska Voda AD, as it contributes to the
. preservation of water resources. In 2008 the Company achieved progress in a wide range of
activities related to the reduction of UQW:

* Continuous monitoring of the supplied water volumes, Tmplementation of a Programine
for purchasing and installing metering devices for all 29 Demand Management Zones
(DMZ} and all metering points along the impounding structures and reservoirs.

* Improving the zoning of the water distribution network. This programme is a tool for
defining water losses and leak detection. In 2008, 22 of the District Metering Areas
(DMA) were reestablished, and all were equipped with remotely-read metering devices
and boundary stop valves:

* 13 pilot areas were established, in which complex measures for UQW reduction were
undertaken. As a resull, the average water volumes supplied in these areas was reduced
by 30%,

* 7 pressure reduction valves (PRV) were installed under the programme for proactive
pressure reduction. Another 7 were replaced.

* Proactive leakage detection was conducted in all villages within the concession area, as
well as in neighborhoods mainly populated by houses and using water for irrigation
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besides domestic needs. For instance, in the village of Dolni Bogrov, the supplied water
voluma was reduced by B0%.

¢ Reactive leakage detection — 3 985 leaks were detected.
s Repair and replacement of 2 400 water service connections.
¢ Repair and replacement of 478 stop valves and 79 hydrants.

*  Replacement and installation of & 000 new revemite maters 1o redues commereial logeee

Quality of the Supplied Water

The 2008 reports of the Sofia Regional Inspectorate [or Public Health Protection and Control
(SRIPHPC), winch performs independent control on the quality of water, show that the potable
water in Sofia has excellent quality. The water's quality indicalors meet all the requirements of
the Bulgarian legislation, harmanized with the European Drinking Water Directive.

For 2008, the tends identified through water monitaring are the following:

* Tor the treatment plants — 100 % compliunce of the samples for microbiological and
physical-chenmmca! parameters and 99.24 % compliance of the samples for hydro
biological indicators. The deviation is due to natural seasonal fluctuations, bul thanks Lo
the successful management of the potable water treatment plants, each identified
deviation is immedhalely eliminaied.

+ For the distribution network - — 99.80% compliance of the samples for microbiclogical
pararelers, 97.85% compliance of the samples for physical-chemical parameters and
97.73% for hydro biological indicators. In 2008 Sofiyska Voda AD inwoduced a
procedure that allows taking immediatc measures when registering any deviation in order
to maintain the high quality of the potable water supplied to the customers.

The Laboratory Testing Complex of Sofivska Voda AD strictly monitors the water quality
according to microbiological, physical-chemical, hydro biological and radiological parameters in
accordance with an approved schedule consistent with the legislative requirements and the
Concession Agreement. In 2008, 16 104 potable waler samples were analyzed. Additionally, 12

samples were taken 1o analyze radiological parameters, and they are all compliant with the quality
standards for potable water.

Laboratory Testing Complex

In June, an Administration Systemn was introduced in the I.TC, developed in accordance with BSS
EN IS0 17025, In November Sofiyska Voda AD submitted its documents and an accreditation
procedure began for the Laboratory Testing Complex.

The LTC has the only microbiolugical laboratory in Bulgaria designed and equipped at a world
class level.

The 2009 Company’s investment plan envisages that the LTC is equipped with new high-tech
equipment which will allow reaching even higher precision and extremely low boundaries for the
detection of a number of physical-chemical parameters. This will allow the Company (o ensure
control in accordance with all European and global requirements.



Water Supply

One of the key indicators in the provision of the water supply service is ensuring continuity of the
water supply. The Management's efforts in relation to this are directed towards reducing the
number of unplanned interruptions due to failures and reducing the disconnection periods. The
objective 15 in case of nctwork repairs and reconstructions, so [ar as this is technically and
organizationally possible, to provide the water supply service with minimum cantinuity
niterruptions.

Emergency interruptions of the water supply

2008 — 6 161 failures, 5 187 inlerruptions;

2007 — 16 200 fixed failures, 7 000 interruptions;

2006 — 15 000 fixed falures, 7 500 interruptions.

Planned interruptions of the water supply

2008 — 124 planned interruptions, 240 000 affected houscholds;
2007 213 planned interruptions, 302 700 affected households:
2006 - 173 planned interruptions, 297 600 affected houscholds.

Sewerage

The sewerage petwork within the territory of the Municipality of Solia includes 1 483 km of
known public assets and ahoot 500 lan of assels with unclaar starne fae nar tha TTIA oF 2003y
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The latter were identified as u result of the Company’s network survey. The majority of the
surrounding territories of Sofia, as well as some areas in the city, do not have a central sewerage
network,

The maintenance of the sewerage network is based on the performance of both, emergengy and
planned activities,

Operation and maintenance activitics on the sewerape system

Activity Measure | Performance | Performance | Performance
2006 2007 2008

Cleaning of slreel sewers meters 290,630 353,616 340,481
Cleaning of gullies number .64._9?15 75,607 35,818 |
Cleaning of inanioics number 3,361 5,786 4,289 |
ansta]latiml of grids (covers) number 3,613 5,369 1.797
Unclogped service connections nuimber 2,297 2,440 1.66]
Unclogged service connections meters 52,650 50,708 31,270




Wastewater Treatment

In 2008 at Kubratovo WWTP, 143 720 million m® of wastewater has been treated, Every day, we
treat a wastewater volume equal Lo around 82% of the plant’s design capacity (480 000 m’/day).
As the investment projects for expanding Sofia’s sewerage network are implemented, the
treatment plant will use its full capacity. Sofiyska Voda AL 1s optimizing control on the
processes and operation in order to meet all legal requirements related o wastewater traatment. In
accordunce with the requirements of the Surface Water Course Discharge permit, issucd by the
Danube Region Water Basin Directorate, and lhe Concession Agreement, the Wastewater Sactor
of the Laboratory Testing Complex al Kubratovo WWTP conducts continuous monitoring of the
wastewater and sludge parameters.

Quality of the Treated Wastewaler

Samples for the analysis of Biological Oxygen Demand (BOD:), Chemnical Oxygen Demand
(COD) and Suspended Solids (SS) are taken at the WWTP cutlet on a daily basis.

In 2008, 1 098 samples were taken for the analysis of treated wastewater. The average values of
the analysis samples arc below the marginal discharge values — the only exception is the average
monthly BOD; value for January 2008, which is 25.5 mgO2/l; this means that the plant's
operation complies with the requirements of the Discharge Permit for BOD;, COD, and 55.

Sludge Treatment and Utilization

The sludge produced from wastewaler treatment is treatad in three of the four sludse dipesters.
The digested sludge is mechanically dewatered to produce a ‘sludge cake’ with dry solids cuntent
of arcund 25%,

In 2008 Sefiyska Voda AD continucd to provide the sludge 1o be usad in agiiculive fur suii
fertilization, The Company holds permits issued by the National Service Tor Plant Protection of
the Ministry of Agriculture and Forestry for the reuse of sludge on agriculmral land. Prior to
granting these permits, the Institute for Agriculture and Forcsiry carried out a detailed analysis of
the sludge to test for the quantities of heavy metals and other contaminants that might pullute the
soil, ground water. or that could have a detrimental effect on the biodiversity. The examinations
show that the sludge from Kubratovo WWTP 15 suilable for the fertilization of agricultural land.

| Sludge from WWTP 2006 2007 2008

| Froduced 47 422 o0 36331 m° 69 907 m?
| R

| Used in agriculiure 63222 m” 27 170 m° 40 635 m”

Electrical and Mechanical Maintenance

Over the iast year, the department successiully implemented the annual plan for the preventive
maintenance of the Company’s facilities, as a result of which the time ratio for emergency works
versus general works dropped from 28% in January to 15% in December 2008,

The reduction in the number of failures over the year made it possible for the department w take
uver achivities that used to be carried out by contractors:

*  Maintenance of safely emergency valves, part of the Iskar Water Main

» Installation of 31 new hydrophore installations, part of the Company’s investment
programme



[n December 2008, a team wis established for the preventive maintenance of the Company’s
lacilities, which will use high-tech equipment (vibration measuring device, thermograhic camera,
laser measuring device) to identify potential faults before they become costly tailures.

Based on the analyzed data about schedules and emergency activity, in cooperation with the
Capilal Works directorate, priorities were determined for replacing inefficient electrical and
mechanical Lacilities in the company. Among the 2009 projects which will enhance the sccurity
and efficiency of the Company's operational activitics are: replacement of the main distribution
pancl al Bistritsa PWTP, repair of transformers at Pancharevo PWTP, replacement of inefficient
engines in WWTP.

Reduced Carbon Emissions Sales Agreement

According to an agreement concluded on 21 September 2007 between Sofiyska Vaoda AD and the
Carbon TFund established at the EBRD for selling reduced carbon emissions, in 2008 an advance
payment was received Lo the amount of BGN 5.9 million.

INVESTMENTS 2008

2008 was the last year of the first Lhree-year Busincss Plan 2006 — 2008. The delay in the

approval of the new complex tariff by 2 months resulted in a capital budget of BGN 25 million
for 2008.

The actual amount of the invesiments implemented in 2008 is BGN 25,43 million. The
Company’s Investment Programme is a balance between projects aiming to meel the regulatory
long-term targel levels, the meeting of other legislative requirements and business efficiency
projects. The 20008 capital expenses (all into the following categories:

Water supply — BGN 11,47 million

Potable water treatment - BGN 00,47 million
Sewerage - BGN 5,38 million

Wastewater treatment — BGN 1,02 million

Service connactions, water meters — BGN 3,65 million
Customer service — BGN 3,44 million

The main projects in 2008 are:

- Reservairs — rehabilitation of 5 reservoirs, commissioning of cne reservoir in the village
of Kramiloovtei

- SRA of the Iskar Dam

- SCADA - continuous expansion of the cxisting system, new project for expanding (he
system in Kubratovo WWTP

- Pumping stations — 5 rehabilitated pumping stations

- Iydrophores — installation of 30 hydrophores, constructing insulation houses

- Water meters — replaced 6 727 prieces.

- Chlonnation stations — Reconstruction of Pancharevo HS, construction of a new HS at
Bovana Reservorr

- Laboratory Testing Complex - reconstruction, accreditation Process

- Sewerage —new and rchabilitation



- Water main — new and rchabilitation
- Delivery of a new jet cleaning machine with wastewater recycling

ENVIRONMENT AND SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT

As a water utility company providing water supply and sewerage services on the territory of Sofia
and the neiphboring settlements, the activity of Sofiyska Voda AD 18 closely linked to ecology
and environmental protection. Sustainable development principles are founding for each aspect of
the Company’s opcration and are harmonized with the principles of the major shareholders — the
Furopean Bank for Reconstruction and TJE‘.VFlnme‘lﬂ and the intermatonal multiutility operator
United Utilities Plc.

The investment activity of Bulgaria’s biggest WSS Qperator Sofiyska Voda AD is as a whole
also environmental. The water and water resource regulation and management along the water
supply network results in waler loss reduction and hence in saving this valuable natural resource.
Enhancing the awareness of Sofia’s residents about efficient water use is a crucial aspect of the
Company’s work towards applying the sustainable development principles. The introduction of
best practices in the sewerage network operalion and maintenance, the construction of new
sewers and the provision of more and more efficient and high-quality wastewater treatment is the
Company’s priority in view of improving the comdition of water sources.

In 2008 Sofiyska Voda implemented an Environmenial Muanagement System as per the
requirements of BSS EN 150 14001:2005, The standard has worldwide recognition and sets
requirements for the organizacions in the identification, management and control of the activities
that impact the environment. The certification audit was conducted by the biggest certification
body in the world offering accredited certification in the arca - "Bureau Veritas Certification”,

In 2008, the legal register was also rencwed. All laws and ordinances related to environmental
protection amended or newly issued during the year were added and updated. Against each
legislative act, the obligation of Sofivska Voda AD pursuant from it 15 described, and the
structural unit to which the compliance level refers is identified.

One of Sofiyska Vodu AD's big successes in 2008 was the introduction of a separate waste
collection system in three differently-colored containers. Contuiners were provided for all of the
Company’s premises and a contract for the collection and transportation of paper, plastic and
Elass waste 15 Ia place.

In the end of 2008 Soliyska Voda AD implemented the first jet cleaning machine in the country
equipped with a closed recycling system of the water used. The use of this technology eliminates
the need of additional trips to fill water for washing, reduces warer and fuel costs and achieves
greal e[lGelency.

In the beginning of 2008 Sofiyska Voda AT [aunched a procedure for the selection of a company
to deliver, install, commission, and maintain a co-generator for biopas utilization from the
Kubratovo Wastewater Treatment Plant. The co-generator’s operation will allow the fuil
utilization of the biogas formed in the sludge decomposition and lurning it into heating and
electricity.
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HEALTH AND SAFETY AT WORK

A key factor for our professional performance is the continuous improvement of our Health and
Salety Admunistration System. In the end of July 2008, the preparation began for certifying the
Company’s OIISAS under the BS OHSAS 18001:2007 standard. The preparation passed through
several stapes:

- Traimng of the managers and the Exec Team

- Training of the internal auditors on standards BS OHSAS 18001:2007 and ISO 190011
2004

- Preparing new and updaiing existing procedures

- Conducting an internal audic

- Conducting a management review f{or the level of OHSAS and our ceruufication
readiness

- Orgamization of the conducting of the two stages of the external centification audit by
TUF NORD.

The exiernal certification audit in December completed without any incompliance, which is
extremely rare in the practice of the external centification organization when auditing big
organizations like ours.

In January Sofiyska Voda AT received certificate Nodd 116087290 for Occupational Health and

System Admustration based on the British standard BS OHSAS 18001:2007, which is the Ffirst
such certiticate issuead.

Lost Time Incidenis

Three occupational accidents have been reported and investigated over the year. These happened

while travelling to and from wark.

Mo Lost Time Incidents

Another 40 incidents have been reported without injuries and loss of time, 38 of which involve
property damage.

HUMAN RESOURCES MANAGEMENT

Sofiyska Veda AD is an organization applying the best practices in the sphere of Human
Besources Development and management.

In April a bonus was paid to Sofivska Voda AIY's employees amounting 1o 6% of the Lotal annual
labor remuneration for 2007 in compliance with the approved Company’s bonus scheme.

As of May 17, 2008 the employzes salaries were increased by 12,5%, following the Company’s
established practice for indexation of the bhasic remuneration with the aimouit of ihe nflation
officially announced by the National Statistcal Institute.

Another imporlant initiative of the Company in the spherz of the Human Resources was the third
Survey held in December 2008, which was entitled “My opinion is important!” 48% of the
Company's emplovees participated in the survey. The results of this survey were summarized at
the beginning of 2009,

In execution of the Annuwal Training Plan 4 number of trainings from the second stage of the
Managers Development Programme were carried out, as well as other trainings, courses and
seminars for the employess of the Company, including university and certification programmes.
Crwver the year induction trainings were also held for the newly appointed employees with the
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purpose ol their quick and sasy adapting to the new environment and getting acquainted with the
valucs, culture and structure of the Company.

Sofiyska Voda AD’s Internship Programme was held for the seventh successive year. Tt started an
July 9™, 2008. The period varied from 3 weeks to 3 months depending on the obligations in the
relevant department. “Challenge the Future” Programme aimed at involving students and young
specialists in the working process in different departments of the Company and identifying future
employees, finding talents and generating fresh ideas. After the mlernship programme was
completed, 50% of the participants remained to work and develop professionally in the Company.

MAs o4 part of Wie cunicnl baining and oevelopinent between Soliysha Voda AD and Uniied
Utilities:

Twoe SV’s employees participated in the third annual programme for international development of
United Utilites held in the summer of 2008;

An engineer from United Utilities completed a six-month course in Sofiyska Voda AD as a part
of his Z-year training,

Sofiyska Voda AD appreciates the individual contribution to the success of the Company. An
example of that is the scheme “Employee of the Month”, within which in 2008 there was a
record-breaking number of nominations (200), distinguishing the work of the employees. Qver
the year 12 empioyees were awarded as “Employee of the Month”, another 5 were awarded for
their excellent performance.

Within the scope of the strategic target for providing enough information to the employees durmg
the year monthly team briefings were held as a way of delivery of information and key messages
to the employees.

The Company performs all its social commitments to the employvees regulated as obligatory in the

regulations and the collective labor agreement signed between the Company and the trade unicns
as representatives of the emplovees.

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT ACTIVITY
Sofiyska Voda AL does not carry out such activity,
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Over the year Sofiyska Voda AD had 7 members of the Board of Directors with the following
remuneration:

Kamen Manev and Georgi Takev — they were each paid BGN 16 000 by Sofivska Voda AD for
their work as Direclors. Nikolay Alcksandrov received BGN 24 000, Kalin Stanukov snd
Svetozar Staikov - BGN 10 000 each.

On 29.05.2008 Kalin Stanukov and Svelozar Staikov were replaced by Georgi Takev and Kamen
Manev respectively, and David Kilgour by David Fuller.

On 24.09,.2008 David Fuller was replaced by Steven Fraser, and on 2012 2008 Thiana Tranova
replaced Henry Russel.

Marion Price, Henry Russcl, Leslie Bell, Staven Fraser, David Fuller, David Kilgour and [liana
Tsanova ook up positions as direclors over the year and did not receive remuneration from
Sofivska Voda AD,

No one from the above members has ever had shares or options for shares in Sofiyska Voda AD.

Regardmg the information required as per art. 187 (d) of the Commercial Act, the Company has
not translerred or acquired own shares over the reporting 2007.
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RELATED PARTIES

The Company has a related party relationship with its parcnt company — United Utilities UU
(Sofia) BV", which owns 77,10% of Sofiyska Voda AD's shares, as well as with the other
companies of the economic group. The amount of the transactions and the sum of the receivables
and debts to the related parties are announced in note 26 to the Consolidated Financial Staterments
of the Company for 2008,

FORECAST FOR 2009 AND BUSINESS PLAN FOR 2009 - 2013,

i Company's Dudget for 200%, BGN 47,5 willion invesiments were provided for, and their
implementation is an important prerequisite for the achievement of the key performance
indicators fixed in the Business Plan for the second regulatory period. The expected financial
result before depreciation, interest and tax expenses as at the end of 2009 is BGN 52,5 million.

On 09.10.2008 the SCEWR approved the five-year Business Plan, and according to it the
Company intends to make investments at the amount of BGN 240 million. With the Decision of
the Commission dated 22.12.2008 the price of BGN 1.168 /without VAT/, proposed by Lhe
Company, was approved and il will allow the implementation of ils investment plan in 2009, The
Business Plan investments are going to be financed through borrowings from the ERRD
amounting 10 BGN 44,8 million and own funds amounting to BGN 195,2 million.

The prices for water supply and sewerage services for 2009 were fixed in compliance with
the Regulations for price determination of the water supply and sewerage services through uppear
price limit The revenue expected for 2009 is in the amount of BGN 117.6 million, which is
aboutl 19% more than the revenue in 2008,

It is necessary to highlight thal the proposed investment programme for the second regulatory
period, amounting to BGN 240 million, can be implemented by Sofiyska Voda AD only if the
Company receive the funds from the EBRD of BGN 44,4 million for the period 2006 — 2010 and
obtains the planned actal increase of the price of the combined service for 2010 - 2013, as
proposed in the approved business plan.
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